
Joint Advance CTE/The Center to Advance CTE Board of Directors’ Meeting 

AGENDA 
October 16, 2017 

12:45 – 3 p.m.  

Meeting Room: Salon ABC 

1. Welcome, Overview of Agenda Pradeep Kotamraju 

12:45 – 12:50 p.m. (5 minutes) President 

2. Approval of Consent Agenda Pradeep Kotamraju 

12:51 – 12:56 p.m. (5 minutes) President 

………………………………………………………………Pages 2 - 71
o Federal Policy Strategy Update

o Member Engagement Strategy Update

o Promotion Strategy Update

o State Policy Strategy Update

o Vision Strategy Update

o May – August 2017 Monthly Board Updates

o Progress on Advance CTE/Center to Advance CTE Activities

3. Policy Update: Executive Committee Roles Kate Kreamer 

12:57 – 1:02 p.m. (5 minutes) Deputy Executive Director 

………………………………………………………………Pages 72 - 75

4. Fundraising & Development Update Kate Kreamer   

1:03  – 1:18 p.m. (15 minutes) Deputy Executive Director 

Kimberly Green 
Executive Director 

………………………………………………………………Pages 76 - 78

5. Shared Impact Dashboard Discussion Kate Kreamer   

1:19  – 3 p.m. (1 hour and 41 minutes) Deputy Executive Director 

Austin Estes 

Policy Associate 

………………………………………………………………Pages 79 - 103



Federal Policy Strategy Update – September 2017 
 

Overview of Major Activities 

1. Ensure high-quality federal and state CTE policies are adopted and implemented 

 

We have been making promising progress in the area of supporting the adoption and 

implementation of high-quality CTE policies at the federal and state levels in coordination with 

Advance CTE’s state policy strategy. In the first in a series of rural briefs, CTE on the Frontier: 

Catalyzing Local Efforts to Improve Program Quality, we included a segment on on how both 

federal policies and investments can support rural CTE. In addition, we have been collaborating 

with the State Policy team to provide tailored resources to the education staffers for Members of 

Congress (i.e., Hill Staff). For example, prior to visiting a staff member for Georgia, we were 

able to work together to determine which resources to include in the leave-behind folder of 

materials. This positioned us as a resource for this staff member, which is especially important as 

CTE garners more attention in the federal policy landscape.  

 

2. Empower members through professional learning  

  

We have restructured the quarterly advocacy call with State CTE Directors by including not only 

federal policy updates, but discussion questions to gather input and solicit feedback. For 

example, the intelligence we gathered from State Directors on the July call informed the 

comments we submitted for the Department of Education’s (ED) Evaluation of Existing 

Regulations and resulted in Advance CTE following up with three State Directors to gather 

further input on our comments. We plan to continue this format for upcoming calls and utilize 

our webinar platform when we need to share more in-depth policy updates (e.g., the webinar we 

held to review the House Perkins reauthorization bill). In addition, the 2017 Perkins 

Implementation Survey was completed by all 50 states, the District of Columbia and Guam. The 

results of the this survey and trend data from past surveys will be shared during the Fall Meeting 

and in additional resources and briefs to be released over the next six months. The Fall Meeting 

will also feature sessions designed to help states prepare for Perkins reauthorization, including 

how to build effective stakeholder engagement and set ambitious performance targets. There will 

also be a session on how to develop an advocacy plan to accomplish state-specific goals.  

 

3. Raise the visibility and promotion of high-quality CTE 

 

In coordination with Communications team, we have reinstated a monthly newsletter for Hill 

Staff and early results indicate that it is reaching more staffers than our previous newsletter did. 

This is another mechanism through which we can reach Hill staff, promote our resources and 

further position Advance CTE as the go-to organization for accurate information and timely 

resources related to Perkins. In addition, in light of the Administration’s proposed 15 percent cut 

to the Perkins Basic State Grants, we asked our membership and readership of the Legislative 

Updates blog what a 15 percent cut would mean to them. In collaboration with the 

Communications team, we compiled the stories we received into a new advocacy resource, 

“What a 15 Percent Cut Perkins Really Means” that has been well-received by advocates and 

sent to Hill staff.  

  

2

https://careertech.org/resource/cte-frontier-program-quality
https://careertech.org/resource/cte-frontier-program-quality
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13443


4. Build and maintain strong and effective partnerships that advance Advance CTE’s

vision and mission

In addition to regularly attending meetings for the coalitions of which we are members and 

participating in their advocacy activities promoting a strong federal investment in education and 

workforce programs (e.g., signing on to letter to appropriators, engaging in social media 

campaigns, etc.), we have been conducting meetings with key partners to build out our 

partnership strategy. Over the last six months, we have met with National Governors Association 

(NGA), the School Superintendents Association (AASA), Associated Equipment Distributors 

(AED) , the Afterschool Alliance and the Alliance for Excellent Education. These meetings have 

been productive and have increased coordination between Advance CTE and our partners. For 

example, as a follow up to meeting with AASA, we sent our first rural brief and they agreed to 

distribute it. In addition, they offered to reinforce the comments we submitted to ED as part of 

the Evaluation of Existing Regulations.  

5. Developing internal processes and protocols to ensure a strong and sustainable

organization

We have been providing regular federal policy updates to staff during staff meetings, resulting in 

greater consistency in messaging. In addition, we have separate weekly meetings with the 

Communications team to provide timely updates on federal policy that may require a quick 

response and coordinate on upcoming advocacy and communications activities.  

3



Major Accomplishments (May – September 2017) 

● Met with the education staffers for 14 members of the Senate Health, Education, Labor

and Pensions (HELP) Committee to introduce Advance CTE, learn about the education

priorities for these Senators and communicate our Perkins reauthorization priorities.

● We promoted the Excellence in Action Award Winners with the relevant Hill staff and it

resulted in an in person meeting with one Senate office (in addition to positioning

Advance CTE as a go-to resource).

● In collaboration with the Communications team, we established clear goals and

guidelines for each type of federal policy and advocacy communication to ensure that

they meet the needs of members and the public.

Challenges  

● While we have identified that developing and consistently applying clear decision rules to

determine when legislation/policies align to Advance CTE's federal policy priorities as

part of the federal policy strategy, this project is one that has been put on hold due to lack

of capacity and competing priorities (e.g., appropriations and Perkins reauthorization

activities).

Update on Identified Priorities for (May-September 2017) 

● Update the federal policy section of the website: Not yet completed. Plans are

underway to have this ready by early winter.

● Continue on the current path of strengthened alignment between the federal policy,

state policy, vision and communications strategies: We have been conducting

coordinating meetings across teams and this has resulted in state policy resources

featuring relevant connections to federal policy, including in the first of a series of rural

briefs, CTE on the Frontier: Catalyzing Local Efforts to Improve Program Quality, we

included a segment on on how both federal policies and investments can support rural

CTE.

● Launch a Perkins reauthorization survey to refresh our knowledge of the current

state of Perkins implementation and to guide future implementation supports: All

50 states, D.C., and Guam completed the 2017 Perkins Implementation Survey and we

are in the midst of analyzing those results and planning for their dissemination. Resources

related to the analysis of the data will be available later this Fall and Winter.

● Begin early planning for Perkins implementation supports (internally and with key

partners): Three of the Fall Meeting sessions focus on providing early planning for

Perkins V implementation and we will continue to seek out strategic opportunities to

prepare the field for reauthorization.

● Create alignment guidelines/decision rules to determine if/when federal policy aligns

to Advance CTE’s priorities: Progress on this priority has stalled due to lack of capacity

and competing priorities. We anticipate being able to make significant progress on this in

the next six months.

4

https://careertech.org/resource/cte-frontier-program-quality


● Establish a federal policy monitoring and tracking system: We have started to 

coordinate our federal policy tracking with ACTE. We review any legislation that has 

been introduced that relates Perkins on our cross-organizational monthly calls. 
 

Priorities for Next Six Months (October 2017 – March 2018) 

● Update the federal policy section of the website 
● Refine specific goals for more targeted advocacy activities to engage Hill staff and other 

key audiences, like the Perkins Education Coalition 
● Produce advocacy resources that help position Advance CTE as the "go-to" organization 

for stakeholders (advocacy, policy, etc.) for accurate information and timely resources 

related to CTE 
● Develop and actively maintain a content management system for tracking federal policy 

and related information (e.g. research, legislation, policies, data, etc.) 
● Develop and consistently apply clear decision rules to determine when 

legislation/policies align to Advance CTE's federal policy priorities 
 

 

Relevant Data 

 

● This summer we were very responsive to a shifting appropriations environment. In 

coordination with the communications team, we re-designed the Perkins Funding Chart, 

authored an op-ed and created a blog post that captured perspectives from CTE advocates 

across the country. While the spending bills for Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18) are not yet 

finalized, both the House and Senate proposals include level-funding for Perkins across 

both the Perkins Basic State Grants and National Programs, a clear rejection of the 

Administration’s proposed 15 percent cut to Perkins Basic State Grants and proposed $20 

million for National Programs.  
● In coordination with the communications team, we have been able to revamp the 

Legislative Updates and this has resulted in improved open rates (32% average, up from 

27%) and click rates (17% average, up from 13%). This means that more of the 

readership is accessing the updates and calls to action we are communicating and that 

they are engaging with more of the resources we are pushing out (e.g., links to reports, 

articles, toolkits, etc.).  

● From July to September, we engaged with 31 partners on federal policy compared to 25 

in the previous quarter. These partnerships have resulted in increased communication and 

collaboration among our partners and further position Advance CTE as a go-to resource 

on Perkins. For example, we have shared our Perkins recommendations with many of 

these groups and as a result, they are aware of our positions and we anticipate that they 

will be more likely to turn to us for resources and information as reauthorization efforts 

continue.  

5

https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/Federal_Appropriations_Career_Technical_Education_2017_final.pdf
https://medium.com/@ACTE/the-flawed-justification-for-proposed-career-tech-budget-cuts-6babc9cbc36c
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13443


Member Engagement Strategy Update – October 2017 
 
Overview of Major Activities 
1. Ensure high-quality federal and state CTE policies are adopted and implemented 
This priority area is addressed below, specifically under “empower members through 
professional learning.” 
 
2. Empower members through professional learning  
All Advance CTE professional learning is designed with our members in mind, and reaffirms our 
commitment to being a member-driven organization. Advance CTE is committed to providing 
comprehensive professional learning for its members through its bi-annual Spring and Fall 
Meetings. We have also actively sought to raise awareness among our State Director 
membership about Advance CTE’s expertise and ability to deliver technical assistance both 
virtually and in-person. This fall, we officially re-launched our New State Director Leadership 
Program, a one-year personalized program offering leadership development and content 
expertise to the growing cohort of new state leaders.  
 
3. Raise the visibility and promotion of high-quality CTE 
The members of Advance CTE are leaders within and beyond their states and the CTE 
community. As such, the organization formally recognizes those accomplishments through its 
annual awards program for long-standing and up-and-coming State CTE Directors. Additionally, 
Advance CTE and the Center to Advance CTE promotes their work by publishing an annual 
report for its members and the broader public.  
 
4. Build and maintain strong and effective partnerships that advance Advance CTE’s 

vision and mission 
Advance CTE relies on the expertise and leadership of its members to inform and enrich the 
organization’s work. In doing so, it also recognizes the unique partnership between the 
organization and its members. To create these feedback loops, Advance CTE are working to 
create regular feedback loops to accomplish this by providing opportunities for those members to 
leverage their expertise to inform the organization’s work and participate in federal and national 
initiatives as a representative of Advance CTE.  
 
5. Developing internal processes and protocols to ensure a strong and sustainable 

organization 
As a member-driven organization, strong internal processes and protocols create a critical 
infrastructure through which we are able to best serve our members. To that end, Advance CTE 
has worked diligently to create strong processes throughout the full-life cycle of membership to 
ensure members receive their full benefits and these processes are efficient and accurate.  
 
Major Accomplishments (May 2017-September 2017) 
The Member Engagement Strategy had several notable accomplishments during the past six 
months.  
 
Expanded State Membership and Other Membership-related Changes 

6



On July 1, the expanded state membership structure was officially launched with 162 members 
from 45 states, 1 territory and the District of Columbia. Of those 162 members, 63 percent (102 
individuals) were new to Advance CTE.  
 
To ensure that these members were properly introduced to the vast resources and supports 
offered by Advance CTE, staff developed a four-part email series that covers the main pillars of 
Advance CTE’s work, including member services, federal and state policy and communications. 
These mailings were well-received and have been re-purposed to be used for new individual and 
honorary members.  
 
Staff also built a process for State Directors to change the composition of their state membership, 
as allowed by the policy. State Directors were notified of this process during the week of 
September 18. However, over the summer months, some State Directors reached out individually 
to make changes or additions. Three states made substitutions due to members moving into new 
positions, and two states added one individual each to fill previously empty spots.  
 
2017 Fall Meeting 
Full results of the Fall Meeting will be discussed in a future board report. However, planning and 
preparation for the meeting has been relatively smooth with some early indicators of success. For 
example, meeting registration has exceeded targets by about $8,000, with more than 140 
attendees. Conversely, sponsorship targets were not met. The sponsorship revenue fell short by 
$7,000. Traditionally, Fall Meeting sponsorships difficult to obtain, but are typically made up for 
in the spring, where we often see an overabundance of sponsorship interest. The deficit not 
earned by the Fall Meeting will be added to the target for the spring in order to make up this 
revenue.  
 
Membership Audit 
As explained in further detail in a separate report, staff conducted the first membership audit, in 
keeping with the organizational commitment to strong internal processes and protocols. The 
audit will be used to refine and inform the newly created processes and protocols involving 
membership records, and will be used as a benchmark for future years. The audit compared our 
financial records against our membership database and email platforms. 
 
At a high level, the average results for each membership type were as follows:  

- State Directors: 0% error rate 
- Associate, State: 5% error rate 
- Associate, Non-state: 9% error rate 
- Organizational: 5% error rate 

 
Examples of errors include no record of membership in the membership database or not being 
listed on the email listserv. All identified errors have been corrected and existing processes and 
being refined to avoid future mistakes.  
 
New State Director Program 
As reported during the Spring Board meeting, former Tennessee State Director, Danielle Mezera, 
was hired as a consultant to help add capacity and thought-partnership to this new program, 

7



which is set to launch on October 5. Over the summer months, the program’s mission, 
curriculum and structure was solidified and created. A separate board report has been created to 
provide further detail about this program.  
 
Challenges: 
Strategy for Developing Members Only Content 
This priority has shifted over the past six months. Currently, there is no formal strategy yet in 
place, but during the planning and production phases of Advance CTE deliverables, staff are now 
having conscious conversation about what – if any – members only content should be developed 
alongside the public resource. A clearinghouse of members only resources had been discussed as 
part of this effort. However, this initiative has been put on hold as staff evaluate the impact and 
success of the public Learning that Works for America Resource Center and whether it would be 
duplicative or useful to have a separate clearinghouse for members only resources. In an effort to 
be good stewards of the organization’s finances, staff have decided to re-evaluate how to better 
serve members with exclusive resources and/or services. Staff plan to engage with members 
during the winter months to better understand what would comprehensively meet their needs.  
 
Priorities for Next Six Months (October 2017-April 2017) 
The next six months are an exciting time for Advance CTE’s member engagement work. The 
major activities include: 

- Implementation of the New State Director Program 
- 2018 Spring Meeting 
- Supporting State Director-ACTE relationships during the 2017 CareerTech VISION 

conference and beyond 
- Member Services Survey  

 
 
  

8



Relevant Data 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

328 329 333 343 348 350 352 354

437
406

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

500

Nov-16 Dec-16 Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17

MEMBERSHIP TRENDS -
NOVEMBER 2016-AUGUST 2017

State Director, 
53

State 
Members, 159

Associate, 
State, 9

Associate, Non-
state, 85

Organizational, 
33

CURRENT MEMBERSHIP -
AS OF AUGUST 31, 2017 

9



Promotion Strategy Update – September 2017 
 
Overview of Major Activities 
1. Ensure high-quality federal and state CTE policies are adopted and implemented 
 
Advance CTE is continually being positioned as the national voice on federal and state policies 
related to CTE. This is being accomplished by leveraging our social media and e-
communications, which continue to meet targeted goals for click and open rates as well as 
growth of social media accounts.  
 
Additionally, Advance CTE, with the Associate for Career and Technical Education (ACTE), 
launched a newly revamped e-newsletter to all education hill staff released for the first time in 
September. This monthly newsletter, the Capitol CTE Chronicle, provides updates on relevant 
CTE topics, as well as highlights Advance CTE and ACTE resources and news, further 
positioning us as the go-to source of information for CTE policy.  
 
As we’ve continued to produce state policy resources, we have also gained traction in that space. 
Our media engagement uptick reflects our success in both the federal and state policy space with 
19 articles featuring our federal and state policy resources and work, including the Career 
Readiness & the Every Student Succeeds Act, CTE on the Frontier, State of CTE report, 
statements on reauthorization, as well as the appropriations process.  
 
Additionally, since May we have also begun to position ourselves as experts in communications 
and communications strategy in CTE. This has resulted in a number of articles featuring the 
research released in May including in CNN and Huffington Post.  
 
2. Empower members through professional learning  
  
Advance CTE has continued to effectively and efficiently communicate with members to keep 
them abreast of new resources, tools, announcements, and more. Open rates of all e-
communications are on target, signaling members are finding the information we send to be 
useful and relevant.  
 
We have also continued to create a number of materials to use for case making including a 
revamp of many of our CTE fact sheets, an update of our state-specific fact sheets, and a number 
of materials for the CTE: Learning that works for America campaign™.  
 
Staff has also launched a recommitment to the Learning that works for America campaign along 
with a multitude of new and refreshed resources, which each State Director will receive as part 
of this project. Staff has continued to provide technical assistance in communications to the four 
states that are part of pilot project, Strategies for Attracting Students to High-Quality CTE.  
 
Since May, staff has also developed a more effective promotion strategy including developing a 
promotional package with suggested emails, social media posts, graphics, and more for staff, 
partners and funders to use when promoting new Advance CTE materials. This ensures that there 
is consistent messaging across these various audiences when promoting key resources.  

10



 
Staff did not utilize the communications committee. This is in part due to the lack of engagement 
in previous committee calls. Additionally, staff has utilized the four pilot states to test resources 
and materials with a highly engaged group of communications professionals.  
 
3. Raise the visibility and promotion of high-quality CTE 
 
Advance CTE has remained committed to promoting quality through a multitude of channels and 
partners. Staff conducted the yearly Excellence in Action award and recognized 11 programs of 
study from across the country. The winners were featured in an awards ceremony at the Spring 
Meeting, and are highlighted in a monthly blog series that is anchored by the five principles in 
Putting Learner Success First. Additionally, staff has embedded these programs across the 
organization by highlighting them in fact sheets, reports, briefs and articles. Additionally, 
Advance CTE will feature them in a webinar in October and at ACTE’s CareerTech VISION 
Conference in December.  
 
Staff has continued to build relationships with key media resulting in an increase in articles (34 
May – September) compared to this time last year (22 articles May – September), across a 
variety of topics including communications, state and federal policy, award winners, and 
Advance CTE resources. Continued relationship building has resulted in a recent webinar 
conducted by Education Week, where Advance CTE was asked to be a presenter. Advance CTE 
has also been featured in a diverse array of media outlets covering issues ranging from K-12 
education, policy, higher education, local issues, and more. This demonstrates Advance CTE’s 
ability to speak to a range of CTE issues.  
 
4. Build and maintain strong and effective partnerships that advance Advance CTE’s 

vision and mission 
  
Advance CTE worked with partners including ACTE on both Perkins reauthorization and the 
appropriations process over the past six months. In addition to a number of pickups in the media 
that highlighted organizational leadership quotes and reinforced our federal policy priorities, we 
also authored an op-ed with ACTE on the importance of the Trump administration investing in 
Perkins.  
 
We have also worked with a variety of partners who have helped us promote our state policy 
resources and materials, amplifying best practices and innovative state strategies.  
 
 
5. Developing internal processes and protocols to ensure a strong and sustainable 

organization 
 
Advance CTE has continued to develop protocol and processes around communications and 
media activities. This includes training staff in new social media protocol, developing a formal 
process for disseminating new resources to a variety of stakeholders including members, and 
tracking media engagement. We utilize Google analytics, Google alerts, and social media 
analytics to report to the board on engagement monthly. In the future, we will be better able to 

11



track member engagement in regards to communications through our communication channels as 
we shift the organizational e-newsletter channel from constant contact to civiCRM.  
 
Additionally, staff has developed a process for the recommitment to the Learning that works for 
America campaign that is also embedded in the new State Director program with a step-by-step 
guide to be utilized by future communications staff.  
 
Major Accomplishments (May – September 2017) 

• Staff conducted the majority of the Siemens Foundation grant from May through 
October. All pilot states have conducted a variety of successful onsite and online 
recruitment activities using the research and messages released in the spring. 
Additionally, Advance CTE staff provided technical assistance to two states, and have 
presented the research findings across the country (See Strategies for Attracting Students 
to High Quality CTE report update for full report.)  

• Staff also developed a formal process for the Learning that works for America campaign, 
which was not in place prior. This will ensure the program is widely adopted by state 
staff, especially in light of recent turnover at the State Director level in the past two years. 
This ensure longevity and sustainably of the camping.  

• Advance CTE continues to build its presence online as evident below. This not only 
signals our ability to produce meaningful and relevant content that leads the CTE field, 
but also our continued efforts to communicate this content to critical stakeholders.  

 
Challenges  

• Staff did not engage the Communications Committee during the last six months. Instead, 
it utilized the four pilot states to bounce off ideas, obtain input on resources, and review 
new materials.  

Update on Identified Priorities for (May-September 2017) 
• All priorities outlined in the last board report have been addressed and are completed or 

are being worked on including:  
o Staff have successfully conducted the Siemens Foundation work and has been 

asked to submit a proposal for another round of funding;  
o Staff has launched new materials under the Learning that works for America 

campaign, refreshed the website, as well as developed a process for signing on 
new State Directors and updating current ones;  

o Staff has not fully differentiated communications, but has launched civiMail and 
tested the service through emails sent to new members as part of the State 
Membership, in addition to building templates in an effort to move away from 
constant contact and utilize civiMail in the future. Staff predicts we will transfer 
to this system in the next six months;  

o Staff successfully conducted the Excellence in Action awards, featuring them in a 
number ways as outlined above.  

 

12



 
 
Priorities for Next Six Months (October 2017 – March 2018) 

• Relaunch the Learning that works for America campaign with all 50 states and 
Washington, D.C. committed the campaign;  

• Launch the 2018 Excellence in Action Awards  
• Conduct the second round of the Siemens Foundation work, with a focus on school 

counselors, as well as providing TA to four new states while continuing to engage the 
current four pilot states.  

 
 

  

13



Relevant Data 
 
Website metrics were lower in the summer months, consistent with years past. Page views, 
sessions and users all increased in August, consistent with school beginning.  
 

 
The Learning that works Blog was similarly slower during the summer months and has fewer 
hits in September because at the time the report was written, there was still a week left in the 
month. There are no concerns with this data.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37753
19538 17681

45238 48859
28836

14853

13427 , 24392
, 37116

118286

60962 47850

160347
190909

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17

Website Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

1776 1567
1448 1485

1015
1434 1247 1169 1254

888

2587 2383

1985 2148

1409

0

1000

2000

3000

May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17

Learning that Works Blog Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

14



Since May, staff has released a number of resources resulting in increased traffic to 
organizational priorities.  
 
Release Web Hits  
Resource Center landing page  6934 
Recruitment Strategies landing page  1943 
The Value and Promise of CTE report 1738 
Mapping Career Readiness in ESSA  1560 
Advance CTE Fall Meeting 1246 
Putting Learner Success First 1129 
Fact Sheets 1076 
Connecting Secondary CTE and 
Apprenticeships 

945 

CTE on the Frontier  762 
Excellence in Action 2017 646 
Raising the Bar 596 
CTE Virtual Institute 529 

 
Social media has continued to grow as we utilize it to announce events and resources, build 
partnerships, and lead the dialogue around CTE.  

 
Board Action:  
None 

3683

2292

3827

2322

4091

2347

4283

2358

4423

2363

0 1000 2000 3000 4000 5000

Total Twitter Followers

Total Facebook Likes

Social Media 

September

Aug-17

Jul-17

Jun-17

May-17

15



State Policy Strategy Update – September 2017 
 
Overview of Major Activities 
1. Ensure high-quality federal and state CTE policies are adopted and implemented 
 
To influence the adoption of high-quality federal and state CTE policy, Advance CTE regularly 
conducts research and produces tools, reports, case studies and other resources that are 
responsive to state needs and aligned to the Putting Learner Success First vision. In 2017 to date, 
the state policy team has published three reports, one tool and 24 snapshots of New Skills for 
Youth states. In the coming months, Advance CTE plans to release a three-part series on rural 
access and quality and a policy framework to help states enhance program approval. 
Additionally, the state policy team is working to more intentionally align state policy strategies 
with Advance CTE’s federal policy work by regularly checking in with federal policy staff and 
ensuring research and publications include relevant connections to Perkins and other federal 
policies.   
 
2. Empower members through professional learning  
  
As states turn to the task of implementing the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), and with 
Perkins reauthorization around the corner, Advance CTE plans to support state implementation 
of federal policy through storytelling, developing resources and providing tailored technical 
assistance. ESSA provides a leverage point to enhance and promote career readiness, and 
Advance CTE will make sure members are aware of and equipped with strategies to maximize 
these opportunities. The state policy team also plans to draw on the New Skills for Youth 
initiative and the research and publications the initiative yields to provide an exclusive benefit to 
Advance CTE members.  
 
3. Raise the visibility and promotion of high-quality CTE 
  
The state policy team’s role in raising the visibility of high-quality CTE includes identifying and 
disseminating research, best practices and policy strategies as well as reaching out to new 
audiences to expand the reach and awareness of strong policy. Since June 2016, Advance CTE 
has maintained a robust repository of reports, tools and policy profiles through the Learning that 
Works Resource Center, which now includes more than 190 resources. The Resource Center 
continues to draw high levels of traffic. Advance CTE aims to further strengthen the Resource 
Center by creating new policy profiles and issuing a feedback survey this summer on the one-
year anniversary of the Resource Center’s launch. Additionally, the state policy team regularly 
publishes research and policy updates on Advance CTE’s blog. A major priority for the 
remainder of the year will be developing and launching a virtual institute designed to raise 
awareness of high-quality CTE to new audiences and communities.  
 
4. Build and maintain strong and effective partnerships that advance Advance CTE’s 

vision and mission 
  
The state policy team maintains partnerships with key influences in the field in order to 
strengthen our own capacity and influence the national conversation around CTE. Our highest 

16



value partnership at the moment is with the Council of Chief State School Officers and 
Education Strategy Group in support of the New Skills for Youth initiative. That initiative has 
national visibility and has enabled Advance CTE to deeply engage a cohort of states working to 
transform their career readiness systems. Advance CTE will also identify and engage strategic 
partners around other projects including an ESSA implementation blog series, the program 
approval policy framework and the virtual institute.  
 
5. Developing internal processes and protocols to ensure a strong and sustainable 

organization 
  
The state policy team has adopted processes to maximize efficiency and impact and ensure all 
activities are aligned with Putting Learner Success First. For example, Advance CTE staff have 
identified opportunities to improve internal knowledge sharing in staff meetings and one-on-one 
check in meetings to ensure all staff are informed of relevant project and state policy 
developments. The state policy team has also scheduled quarterly strategy reflection meetings to 
diagnose strengths and challenges and push the team to more effectively advance the vision. This 
strategy has since been mirrored by the organization as a whole.  
  

17



Major Accomplishments (May – September 2017) 
• Developed a robust syllabus for the CTE Virtual Institute that is aligned with the Putting 

Learner Success First vision principles and contains 68 high-quality resources. This 
summer, a hand-selected advisory group of members and key partners, representing 
various sectors, reviewed and provided input into the design and content of the program. 
It is scheduled to launch in October with an inaugural cohort of 15-20 participants.  

• Completed the Policy Benchmark Tool for CTE Program of Study Approval. The tool 
provides states with a rubric that outlines the results of high-quality program approval 
policies, a section of templates to help with planning and implementation, and a section 
on program evaluation policy.  

• Published several new resources including:  
o CTE on the Frontier: Connecting Rural Learners with the World of Work (Sept) 
o CTE on the Frontier: Catalyzing Local Efforts to Improve Program Quality (Aug) 
o Career Readiness & the Every Student Succeeds Act: Mapping Career Readiness 

in State ESSA Plans - Round 1 (July) 
• Added 47 new resources to the Learning that Works Resource Center, including two 

policy profiles, 17 reports, 18 guides and 10 case studies. Additionally, all 50 states now 
have at least one associated resource in the Learning that Works Resource Center.  

• Conducted three surveys for the upcoming State of CTE report on career advising and 
development. Forty-five State CTE Directors responded to their survey, while 19 State 
School Counseling Directors responded and 646 school counselors responded to their 
separate survey. The school counselor survey also included questions related to the 
messaging research recently carried out under the Siemens grant, which will be used to 
supplement messaging materials and develop messaging resources for school counselors 
related to CTE.  

• Updated state fact sheets and web profiles with the latest data. Each state fact sheet now 
includes at least one state-specific fun fact to celebrate its achievements.  

• In July, reviewed and synthesized the first 17 submitted ESSA plans to determine 
alignment with career readiness strategies. This work generated considerable attention, 
including more than 1,500 hits in the Resource Center, 60 webinar attendees and at least 
11 pickups from national press and partners. 

 
Challenges  
The state policy team has been working to compile evidence and research in an easily digestible 
format that state directors and members can use to inform their own research, case making and 
policy development. Due to limited staff capacity, that project has been delayed, though staff are 
committed to make progress on the project this fall. 
 
Staff capacity has also delayed an internal project related to knowledge sharing and 
dissemination within the organization. Staff have placed a renewed focus on this area and will be 
able to complete the first phase of this project by the end of 2017. Then in 2018 the focus will 
shift to maintenance of the internal knowledge sharing and associated behavior shifts.  
 

18



Update on Identified Priorities for (May-September 2017) 
• Release three briefs focused on rural issues. 

o Two briefs have been released, with the third being released on October 31. Staff 
have decided to expand the rural initiative, by including a fourth rural brief in 
January 2018 and a tool related to the federal role in rural CTE, which will likely 
be released in November 2017.  

• Release of one tool focused on using and interpreting data 
o A guide for dissemination of labor market information will be released November 

14, 2017. The guide will feature case studies from Kentucky, Nevada and 
Washington, as well as guiding questions and an appendix of other data tools 
available. This guide will be completed in early October, but due to a very full 
release schedule, the publication date was delayed until November.  

• Complete survey of members for upcoming State of CTE report on career advising, in 
partnership with the American School Counselors Association (ASCA). 

o Three surveys were carried out on career advising: one for State CTE Directors, 
which received responses from 44 states and DC; one for State School Counseling 
Directors, which received 19 responses; and one for school counselors, which 
received 646 responses. Analysis of the surveys is underway, and a preview of the 
early findings will be presented at the Fall Meeting. The full report will be 
released in the first week of February, 2018, to coincide with the beginning of 
CTE Month and National School Counseling Week.  

• Test, refine and release Advance CTE’s first State Policy Framework on CTE program 
approval. 

o The Policy Benchmark Tool on program approval will launch on October 3, with 
a webinar for members on October 12. The tool has been reviewed and vetted by 
numerous members and organizational partners, and represents Advance CTE’s 
views on the crucial elements of state policy related to program quality. Staff are 
in the process of designing a range of technical assistance options for assisting 
states in using the tool, and are beginning to plan for the next Policy Benchmark 
Tool on a new topic.  

• Launch the pilot Virtual Institute, a survey course on CTE policy intended for audiences 
new to the content. 

o Applications opened for the Virtual Institute in mid-September, and quickly 
reached over 70 applicants for a 15-person cohort. Staff are currently working to 
narrow down the list for the first cohort, which launches October 23.  

• Continue Phase Two of NSFY, including participating in convenings, progress 
monitoring conversations and monthly project team meetings, as well as providing 
technical assistance to states as requested. 

o This work continues to progress well. All ten NSFY states are going through their 
first stocktake progress monitoring conversations, and staff are preparing for a 
NSFY convening in Cincinnati November 1-3. At the convening states will begin 
to refine their plans for 2018.  

 

19



Priorities for Next Six Months (October 2017 – March 2018) 
• Launch the first cohort of the CTE Virtual Institute in October 2017 and a second in early 

Spring 2018 
• Provide in-person and virtual technical assistance to states related to the Policy 

Benchmark Tool  
• Identify the topic for the next Policy Benchmark Tool and have a draft ready by March 

2018  
• Release an updated version of the ESSA brief, including the second round of state plan 

submissions 
• Release the State of CTE report on career advising and development in partnership with 

ASCA in February 2018 
• Release snapshots of the ten NSFY Phase Two states  
• Release two additional rural briefs  

 

  

20



Relevant Data 
• The Learning that Works Resource Center has received more than 105,000 hits since its 

launch in June 2016. 
• According to the Resource Center feedback survey, 86 percent of respondents say they 

would recommend the website to a friend.  
• Additionally, 36 percent of survey respondents say they have used the Resource Center to 

inform policy or practice in their state, district, school or institution and 25 percent say 
they are working to replicate examples.  

• Advance CTE resources and publications received an average of 272 hits in their first 
month through the Resource Center.  

 

3,504
4,386

6,202 5,938

7,536

5,802

3,804

8,838

6,972 7,199 7,287 7,014 6,762
7,784

10,932

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Resource Center Monthly Pageviews
June 2016 - August 2017

21



Putting Learner Success First Strategy Update – October 2017 
 
Overview of Major Activities 
1. Ensure high-quality federal and state CTE policies are adopted and implemented 
Putting Learner Success First will become the guidepost for our organizational federal and state 
policy priorities, as reflected in position papers, recommendations and state policy frameworks. 
The shared vision also serves as the foundation for our research agenda and is highlighted and 
featured in any and all publications and resources, such as the CTE on the Frontier rural briefs, 
Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool, and planned publications on career advisement and 
use of labor market information.  
 
2. Empower members through professional learning  
Advance CTE is working to support members as they adopt, implement and advance the 
principles and actions of Putting Learner Success First through the development of resources to 
support implementation, promotion at our meetings, and the member committee to that helped 
identify promising practices and high-need resources.    
 
3. Raise the visibility and promotion of high-quality CTE 
To position Putting Learning Success First as an advocacy vehicle for high-quality CTE, 
Advance CTE has created communications tools and resources to support its promotion; 
identifying best practices that can be disseminated broadly; and creating opportunities for 
partners, members and other supporters to publicly demonstrate their support for the vision and 
its principles. In addition the resources, Advance CTE has also created a blog series, a campaign 
sign-on webpage and is anchoring all of the Excellence in Action blogs in the five principles. 
 
4. Build and maintain strong and effective partnerships that advance Advance CTE’s 

vision and mission 
Advance CTE is committed to serving as an ongoing convener of partnering organizations to 
ensure advocacy for and collaborative and coordinated advancement of the vision and its 
principles. While there has not been many partnership activities anchored explicitly around 
Putting Learner Success First, we are continually working to deepening our partnerships with 
vision supporters, engage new supporters and identify new ways to collaborate in support of key 
principles and actions.  
 
5. Developing internal processes and protocols to ensure a strong and sustainable 

organization 
To support the wide array of activities related to Putting Learner Success First led by Advance 
CTE, its partners and state and local leaders, Advance CTE has created an internal set of metrics 
to track progress and success.  
  

22



Major Accomplishments (May – October 2017) 
In the past six months, Advance CTE has: 

• Released an animated video showing a world where the principles of Putting Learner 
Success First are a reality. This has been viewed over 500 times and shown to over 2,000 
individuals during presentations.  

• Launched a blog series diving into each of the five principles of Putting Learner Success 
First.  

• Aligned all recent and planned publications with principles and actions within Putting 
Learner Success First: 
o Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool (Principle 1) 
o CTE on the Frontier: Ensuring Quality (Principle 1, 3) 
o CTE on the Frontier: Connecting Rural Learners with the World of Work (Principle 1, 2, 

5) 
o Mapping Career Readiness in ESSA (Principle 5) 
o Labor Market Information Guide (Nov. 2018 – Principle 1, 5) 
o CTE on the Frontier: Providing Learners Access to Diverse Career Pathways  (Oct. 2017 

– Principle 1, 5) 
o CTE on the Frontier: Expanding the Teacher Pipeline (Jan./Feb. 2018 – Principle 4)  
o State of CTE: Career Advisement (Feb. 2018 – Principle 2) 

• The newly launched CTE Virtual institute is organized around the five principles. 
• Continued to ensure Putting Learner Success First was embedded and being implemented 

throughout our communications, member engagement, state policy and federal advocacy 
strategies. 

• Presented on Putting Learner Success First at five state and two national conferences, and a 
webinar hosted by Education Week.  

• Used Putting Learner Success First as a foundational document to guide the work of the 
Career Clusters Task Force.  

 
Challenges  
The integration of the principles and actions into Advance CTE’s federal policy priorities has not 
fully occurred as we have been hesitant to modify our Perkins recommendations in case it caused 
confusion during the reauthorization process. However, we will be updating the website shortly 
and Putting Learner Success First will be better integrated into the federal policy section, as well 
as any new resources created in support of our expanded HEA and WIOA supports.  
 
In addition, as identified in the Spring, while we have created a number of resources based on 
input from our members and partners and kept Putting Learner Success First in the spotlight 
through national and state presentations, Advance CTE has not actively supported 
implementation at the state and local level, largely due to a lack of internal capacity and 
competing resources and promotions. In particular, the release of Putting Learner Success First 
at the same time New Skills for Youth was ramping up meant we had both five principles and six 

23

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lW-yNoZVyCA
http://blog.careertech.org/?tag=putting-learner-success-firsthttp://blog.careertech.org/?p=13420
http://www.careertech.org/vision-resources


key objectives to attend to. However – and critically – we were able to ensure the New Skills for 
Youth work is aligned with and supports the advancement of the principles of the vision.  
 
At the same time, we are creating other tools around communications and policy where we have 
seen greater interest and uptake so we may simply be competing with ourselves (e.g., the various 
tools created under Siemens, the Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool, the tools being 
created as part of the new State Director program, etc.). For example, while we have created self-
assessment tools for state leaders and for local leaders – both tested by members and given very 
positive feedback – only a very small number of individuals have used these resources despite 
multiple promotions through blog, e-blasts and our member newsletter.   
 
Finally, there is no question that the Future of CTE Summit and development and release of 
Putting Learner Success First has strengthened partnerships with many key organizations, 
including National Skills Coalition, Council of Chief State School Officers, ACTE, U.S. 
Chamber of Commerce Foundation, SkillsUSA and FCCLA. However, since last Spring, we 
haven’t engaged in explicit activities related to Putting Learner Success First, but have 
continued to partner in work that helps advance specific principles, such as work with National 
Skills Coalition around connecting CTE and apprenticeships and the NSFY project with CCSSO.  
 
Priorities Moving Forward 
• Continue to use Putting Learner Success First as the anchor for all resources, publications, 

presentations and fundraising efforts. 
• Update our federal policy section of careertech.org and align to Putting Learner Success 

First. 
• Lean on Putting Learner Success First as the foundational document for major project 

planning – including the Career Cluster Task Force and Advance CTE/The Center to 
Advance CTE’s 2018-2020 strategic planning.  

• Revise advance CTE’s organizational mission and vision to align with Putting Learner 
Success First (rather than Reflect, Transform and Lead, as it is now aligned to).  

Given Putting Learner Success First is so well integrated into our organization – and all staff are 
fully committed to its principles and promotion – we will plan to integrate Putting Learner 
Success First updates into other reports rather than submit a stand-alone one.  
 
Relevant Data 
State Directors and their colleagues from 40 states have actively supported Putting Learner 
Success First in some way, with 32 presenting on the vision at statewide conferences or other 
public meetings, such as to the State Board or a statewide advisory committee; 22 using the 
vision document to strengthen a statewide strategic plan, vision or mission for CTE; and five, at 
minimum, sharing it with colleagues and networks as a way to promote high-quality CTE.  
 
• 134 individuals from 39 states have participated in the sign on campaign.  
• The Putting Learner Success First page on careertech.org has been visited over 1,600 times 

since May 2017 (and 6,300 times since May 2016).  
• We have distributed over 30,000 hard copies of the vision. 

24

https://careertech.org/shared-vision-sign-on


 

 
Upcoming Advance CTE and Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings 
Advance CTE Board 

 August 24, 2017 from 1 – 2 p.m. E.T.  via conference call  
 Topic: Governance  

 
Fall Board Meetings:  October 16, 2017 – BWI Marriott 

9 a.m. – Noon  - Advance CTE 
12:30 – 3:30-p.m.  -  Joint Board meeting of Advance CTE  & The Center to Advance CTE  
3:30 – 5 p.m. – The Center to Advance CTE  

 
State CTE Director Changes  
Transitions 

 In May, Advance CTE received a number of notices regarding State Director transitions:  
o Connecticut: Melissa Hickey was promoted and Harold Mackin assumed the State 

Director title in late May. Harold has been paired with Meg Harvey of Maine.  
o Oregon: Laura Roach retired on May 1 and the point of contact is Donna Brant. 
o Texas: Quentin Suffren resigned his role at the Texas Education Agency. Diane Salazar 

has been named the interim.  
o New York: Eric Suhr retired on June 1. The interim State Director is Mary Cahill.  
o South Carolina: Ron Roveri has accepted a position at the local level, effective July 1. 

 Additionally, the following states remain without permanent leadership: Alabama, DC, and 
Tennessee. 

 

 
Finance Update:   
 

Advance CTE Budget Snapshot  Center to Advance CTE Budget  Snapshot 
 Received 100.30% of budgeted income  Received 138.75% of budgeted income 
 Expended 64.71% of budgeted expenses  Expended 92.38% of budgeted expenses 

 
Fundraising  
Advance CTE is currently pursuing a variety of federal, corporate and foundation contacts to discuss 
potential grants and contracts. Below is a chart explaining this month’s engagement with various 
development opportunities.   
 

Advance CTE / Center to Advance CTE 
Board of Directors’ Update 

May 2017 
 

QUICK UPDATES 
 

Strategic Priority: Ensure strong organizational governance and fiscal security for both Advance 
CTE and The Center to Advance CTE 

25



  2

 

Grant/Proposal/ 
Contract 

Organization 
/Partner 

Engagement  in Past Month Status 

Siemens 
Foundation 

 
A fuller update is below about Strategies for Recruiting 
Students into High-quality CTE below 

Ongoing 
 

New Skills for 
Youth 

JP Morgan 
Chase 
CCSSO 

A fuller update is below about recent and upcoming 
initiatives and deliverables supported by the NSFY grant.  

Ongoing 

IDIQ – 
Connecting 
Secondary CTE 
& 
Apprenticeships 

OCTAE 

OCTAE, Advance CTE and RTI International held a webinar 
on April 26 on the upcoming release of the report 
“Opportunities for Connecting Secondary Career and 
Technical Education (CTE) Students and Apprenticeship 
Programs,” which can be found here.  The report is in the 
final stages of approval and is expected to be released in 
June. 
 
While this contract was supposed to end by January 2017, 
we have a contract modification, with the final deliverables 
submitted by September 2017. 

Ongoing 

Misc.  

Staff had calls with representatives from the Joyce 
Foundation and GE Foundation in May to share 
information and build relationships. We have scheduled 
tentative meetings with both in July and August.  
 
Advance CTE will also be participating in a funder-led 
meeting in June around career pathways, with a number of 
other national partners and funders.  

Preliminary  

 
 

 
Membership Update   
In May, Advance CTE received two new memberships – one Associate, State and one Associate, Non-
state 
 
Total membership as of May 30, 2017: 352 

 State Director: 54  
 Associate, State: 93 
 Associate, Non-state: 98 
 Organizational: 36 organizations (representing 107 individuals) 

 
FY 18 State Membership 
Following the Spring Meeting, a few more states submitted their state members, bringing the total to 
44 participating states and 149 state members. Advance CTE continues to prepare for the July 1 
implementation and will share more details in the next month’s board report.  
 
  

Strategic Priority: Provide, encourage and support professional learning to expand the skills, 
content knowledge and leadership of state CTE leaders. 

26

http://cte.ed.gov/view_module/38


  3

Member Resources and Supports 
 
State Policy Update:  
 
New Skills for Youth: The NSFY team continues to work with Phase Two states on refining their 
outcomes goals and designing an effective progress monitoring system. The project team has recently 
begun working on the NSFY Fall Convening, tentatively scheduled for November 1-3, 2017.  
 
Staff also began planning for future publications, including kickoff calls with the American School 
Counselor Association on the next State of CTE report, which will focus on career development.  
 
Rural briefs: Advance CTE staff are working on a three-part series examining access and quality of CTE 
in rural communities. The series will explore vexing challenges -- such as providing diverse program 
offerings, expanding the rural CTE teacher pipeline and increasing learning access to opportunities -- 
and will highlight innovative state solutions. Our team aims to conclude research shortly and plans to 
release the first brief in July or early August. 
 
Resource Center: With more than 6,700 hits in May, the Resource Center continues a strong trend of 
high monthly engagement. Advance CTE's two most recent publications made the top of the list. "The 
Value and Promise of Career Technical Education," summarizing a recent national survey of student 
and parent perceptions of CTE, was the most accessed resource. It was followed by "Raising the Bar," a 
report documenting program approval in Tennessee, New Jersey and Delaware. For the third month 
in a row (and ninth overall), the top resource topic was "Career Advisement." Later in June we plan to 
mark the one-year anniversary of the Learning that Works Resource Center with a feedback survey. 
The survey will be sent to subscribers of the Resource Roundup newsletter and will help build our 
understanding of how people are using the system and what we can do to improve the usability and 
content. 
 
Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool: Staff used the Advance CTE Spring Meeting to test with 
members a draft slice of the program approval policy benchmark tool. This tool lists core elements 
necessary for any effective program approval policy, elements which were chosen based on research 
and interviews with State Directors in secondary and postsecondary. The tool also contains an 
illustrative rubric which further defines the core elements and helps states identify gaps in current 
policy. 
 
Based on feedback from the Spring Meeting, the tool is being updated, and will be shared again with 
volunteer states and partners in July for their review and feedback. The tool will be released in the fall, 
and staff are planning to offer a few states the chance to participate in an Advance CTE-led self-
assessment on the tool’s criteria.  
 
CTE Virtual Institute: Staff have also begun planning for a project tentatively titled the Virtual Institute. 
The Institute is a web-based, comprehensive crash course on high-quality CTE designed for new 
audiences with limited knowledge or awareness of the field. It will build upon resources in the 
Learning that Works Resource Center to guide participants along a modular exploration of the world 
of CTE, and will feature informative new videos and interaction with experts on staff. The Virtual 
Institute is scheduled to launch later this fall. 
 
Industry Expert Working Groups: Following the release of the 2016 State of CTE report on increasing 
access to industry experts and the sustained level of interest it generated, staff have again partnered 
with the AIR Center on Great Teachers and Leaders to lead two working groups inspired by the report. 
These groups will include representatives from six to eight states and will meet virtually five times 

27



  4

between now and the end of the year. At the end of the year, there will be a report produced 
summarizing the lessons learned from both groups. Invitations to states and national partners will 
likely be sent out in June 2017.  
 
Meetings/Events  
 

Event Name Date Total 
Participants 

Total 
Participating 

State Directors 

% of Registration 
Goal 

Value & Promise of CTE webinar 5/16/17 68 22 NA 

Perkins Update Webinar for State 
Directors 

5/19/17 53 53 NA 

 
The 2017 Spring Meeting far surpassed registration and sponsorship targets. Overall, the meeting 
evaluation showed high levels of satisfaction throughout the meeting. Some of the newer features of 
the meeting – such as the mobile-friendly agenda, Sched – received high marks with a majority of 
respondents saying they would like to see something like this at future meetings. Additionally the 
workshop format was very well received with some constructive notes for future meetings. Sponsors 
also rated their meeting experience highly with all saying they were satisfied with their sponsorship 
and 100% said they would sponsor future meetings.  
 
Plans are already underway for the 2017 Fall Meeting in Baltimore, Maryland. Registration is expected 
to launch in early July.  
 

 
This month marks the one year anniversary of the release of Putting Learner Success First: A Shared 
Vision for the Future of CTE! While we have continued to release materials in support of Putting Learner 
Success First, we are in the process of creating a more intentional strategy for year two and beyond.  
 
In May, we: 
 We released a short animated video on Putting Learner Success First at the Spring meeting. 

 We collaborated with ACTE and some of our non-state Associate members to develop a self-
assessment practitioners can use (or state leaders can use with practitioners) to evaluate how well 
they are aligned with Putting Learner Success First 

 We refreshed a self-assessment tool for state leaders to use to reflect on the progress they have 
made around the vision and its principles.  

 We are planning a blog series to highlight the opportunities and initiatives aligned with each 
principle.  

  

Strategic Priority: Lead a cross-organizational and cross-state effort to successfully build 
awareness, advocacy and accomplishment of the Putting Learner Success First: A Shared 

Vision for the Future of CTE. 

28

http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13267
http://blog.careertech.org/www.careertech.org/vision
http://blog.careertech.org/www.careertech.org/vision
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lW-yNoZVyCA
https://careertech.org/vision-resources
https://careertech.org/vision-resources
https://careertech.org/vision-resources


  5

 

 
Federal Advocacy Plan:  
As Congress looks to the 2018 Fiscal Year (FY18), we are revamping our efforts to draw attention to the 
need for a strong federal investment in the Perkins Basic State Grants. As detailed below, the 
President’s proposed FY18 budget cuts these grants by 15 percent and increases the National 
Programs line item by $20 million to “support a competition to promote the development, 
enhancement, implementation, or expansion of innovative CTE programs in science, technology, 
engineering, and mathematics (STEM) fields” according to the Department of Education (ED) FY18 
Budget Summary and Background Information. Given this proposal, we will continue to meet with 
Congressional budget and appropriations committee staff to make the case for an increased 
investment in the Basic State Grants. We also submitted a question about the rationale for the $168 
million cut to members of the House Labor, Health and Human Services, Education and Related 
Agencies Appropriations Subcommittee, in hopes it would get asked during their ED budget hearing 
on May 24. Unfortunately, the question wasn't asked directly, so Secretary DeVos didn't comment on it 
specifically, but we plan to submit it again prior to the Senate’s hearing next week. Our efforts off the 
Hill include an upcoming op-ed and a blog series on how these proposed cuts would impact CTE on 
the ground - we have asked the readers of our Legislative Updates to send us their stories to feature. 
We are also partnering with other organizations to send a clear message about the importance and 
value of the investment in Basic State Grants. For example, both the National Governors Association 
(NGA) and the Council of Chief State School Officers (CCSSO) have included Perkins funding in their 
letters to Congressional appropriators.   
 
Perkins: The Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (H.R. 2353) to 
reauthorize the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act (Perkins) was introduced on May 4 
by Representatives Glenn “GT” Thompson (R-PA) and Raja Krishnamoorthi (D-IL). This bipartisan bill 
builds on last year’s effort to reauthorize Perkins (H.R. 5587), which passed the House by a 405-5 
margin in September 2016. On May 17, the House Education and the Workforce Committee marked 
up H.R. 2353 (you can watch the mark up here) and unanimously passed it. Prior to the mark up, 
Advance CTE and ACTE sent a letter to the committee outlining our support of many provisions 
included in H.R. 2353 and our main outstanding concern around how the bill defines a secondary CTE 
concentrator (you can find a summary and analysis of H.R. 2353 here). We anticipate that H.R. 2353 will 
go for a vote before the full House of Representatives this summer and we will continue conversations 
with Congressional staff in the coming weeks to address the secondary CTE concentrator definition 
and other technical fixes that are needed.  
 
HEA: The roundtable discussion at the Spring Meeting on how HEA can better support a broader 
spectrum of students who are pursuing post-secondary experiences (e.g., community college, 
industry-recognized credentials, etc.) was a great kick-off event for our new “kitchen cabinet” group. 
While we will continue to use our HEA Recommendations as the baseline for discussions with 
Congressional staff, the kitchen cabinet group will be an excellent sounding board for us as we 
consider HEA proposals and ideas with partner groups.  
 

Strategic Priority: Build on our existing strong public policy leadership by developing and 
disseminating legislation and public policy that impacts education, economic and workforce 

development in support of expanded access to and quality of CTE. 

29

https://www2.ed.gov/about/overview/budget/budget18/summary/18summary.pdf
http://edworkforce.house.gov/calendar/eventsingle.aspx?EventID=401646
http://edworkforce.house.gov/calendar/eventsingle.aspx?EventID=401646
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=mdxylgooZ-M
http://www.acteonline.org/uploadedFiles/Policy_and_Advocacy/Key_Issues/ACTE_AdvanceCTE_HouseCommitteeLetter_051517_FINAL.pdf
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/H.R.2353_Summary-Analysis_Markup.pdf
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/Advance_CTE_HEA_Recommendations_2017_FINAL_0.pdf


  6

Budget / Appropriations:  On Friday, May 5, the President signed an omnibus appropriations bill 
for Fiscal Year 2017 (FY17). Perkins Basic State Grants remained level-funded ($1,117,598). On May 23, 
the President’s Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18) Budget was released. This proposal includes a $168 million cut 
to the Perkins Basic State Grant, a 15 percent decrease from the current level of funding and also 
includes an increase of $20 million for National Programs for innovative CTE programs in STEM. Our 
full statement on the budget can be found here. As noted above, we are expanding and intensifying 
our advocacy efforts around the budget and appropriations processes to ensure that these cuts do not 
come to fruition.  
 
Congressional Offices Engaged in May 2017:  

 Meeting with Mackensie Burt, Sen. Alexander (R-TN) Office 
 Meeting with Katie Dwyer, Sen. Kennedy (R-LA) Office 
 Meeting with Desiree Mowry, Sen. Blunt (R-MO) Office  
 Meeting with Colin Hayes, Rep. Womack (R-AR) Office  
 Calls with James Redstone, House Education and the Workforce Committee, Majority 

Staff 
 
The Following Congressional Staff Participated in the “View from the Hill” Panel at the 
Spring Meeting: 

 Alex Payne, Education Policy Advisor, House Education and the Workforce Committee, 
Minority Staff 

 James Redstone, Professional Staff Member, House Education and the Workforce 
Committee, Majority Staff 

 Allie Kimmel, Senior Education Policy Advisor, Senate HELP Committee, Minority Staff  
 Steve Townsend, Professional Staff Member, Senate HELP Committee, Majority Staff  

 
Communications Report:   
 
 

 

Major Organizational 
Releases/Initiatives  

 The Value and 
Promise of CTE 
(576 views)  

 Resource Center
(1278)  

 Perkins 
(438)  

Acquisition of site 
users 

 Organic search 
(43%) 

 Direct (40%) 
 Referral (15%) 

 

41650 41591
51513 48505

43086 36436 37753
32631 , 31282 , 38115 , 36199 33089 27766 28836

138924 135592

192713
176042

149192
132957

118286

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

Nov‐16 Dec‐16 Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17

Website Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

30

https://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/BUDGET-2018-APP/pdf/BUDGET-2018-APP.pdf
https://careertech.org/acte-advance-cte-statement-president%E2%80%99s-fy18-budget
https://careertech.org/recruitmentstrategies
http://www.careertech.org/resource-center
https://careertech.org/Perkins


 
 

 

7

 

16 Blog Posts 
Published  
Most visited blogs:  

 President’s 
Budget 
Proposal Raises 
Questions  

 Welcome to 
Arizona’s New 
SD 

 Perkins 
Reauthorization 
Bill Introduced 

 

 
 
Facebook: 11 
 
Twitter: +176 
 
 

 
 
Media 
Advance CTE was featured 17 times in the media this month, with multiple quotes from staff, 
links to the website, and covering a range of projects and initiatives. Staff provided quotes on 
two separate occasions to Education Daily, however Advance CTE is not subscribed so 
mentions are not recorded. Media links are:  
 
Administration Budget Announcement  
 
5/26/17 – Career and Technical Education Faces Cuts in President’s FY 18 Budget, Collision 
Week  
5/25/17 - STEM Funding Uncertain in Trump White House, U.S. News & World Report 
5/24/17 - Trump Budget Would Slash Student Aid and Research, Inside Higher Ed  
5/23/17 - Trump's Education Budget Takes Aim at the Working Class, The Atlantic  
5/23/17 – Report: Trump Education Budget Slams the Working Class that Helped Elect Him 
President, The Progressive Pulse 

1605 1334 1438
1652 1733

1676
1349

1776

1361
1087 1033

1432 1420
1390

1106
1434

2316 2001
2529 2396 2631 2608

2027

2587

0

1000

2000

3000

Oct‐16 Nov‐16 Dec‐16 Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17

Learning that Works Blog Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

2911

2227

3032

2249

3249

2266

3393

2283

3507

2281

3683

2292

0 1000 2000 3000 4000

Total Twitter Followers

Total Facebook Likes

Social Media 

May‐17

Apr‐17

Mar‐17

Feb‐17

Jan‐17

Dec‐16

31

http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13284
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13211
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13225
https://collisionweek.com/2017/05/25/career-technical-education-faces-cuts-presidents-fy18-budget/
https://www.usnews.com/news/stem-solutions/articles/2017-05-25/funding-for-stem-programs-uncertain-in-trump-white-house
https://www.insidehighered.com/news/2017/05/24/white-house-budget-includes-tens-billions-cuts-student-aid-and-research
https://www.theatlantic.com/education/archive/2017/05/trumps-education-budget-takes-aim-at-the-working-class/527718/
http://pulse.ncpolicywatch.org/2017/05/23/report-trump-education-budget-slams-working-class-helped-elect-president/#sthash.9KiDgKGe.dpbs
http://pulse.ncpolicywatch.org/2017/05/23/report-trump-education-budget-slams-working-class-helped-elect-president/#sthash.9KiDgKGe.dpbs


 
 

 

8

5/23/17 - Trump Spending Plan Triggers Many Negative Reactions From K-12 World, 
Education Week 
 
Perkins Reauthorization  
 
5/18/17 - Career and Technical Education is a Bipartisan Priority, Education Dive  
5/10/17 - CTE Reauthorization Draws Congressional Attention, The Journal  
5/5/17 - Bipartisan Bill to Reauthorize Perkins Act, Inside Higher Ed 
 
Siemens Foundation Work  
 
5/11/17 - Stigma Hobbles Career and Technical Education, Education Week 
 
State of CTE  
 
5/10/17 - Demand for Tech Teachers Rises in Clark County Amid National Shortage, 
Springfield News-Sun 
5/23/17 - Perkins Reauthorization: An Opportunity to Address Career and Technical Education 
Teacher Shortages, Learning Policy Institute  
 
Awards: Excellence in Action & Star of Education  
 
5/26/17 - JCJC's EMT Program Earns "Excellence in Action" National Award, WDAM 
5/24/17 - Summit Tech Earns National Recognition, Lee's Summit Journal  
5/4/17 - Milton Hershey School Receives National Excellence in Action Award for Law, Public 
Safety and Security Career Pathway, Benzinga  
5/4/17 - Oakland Mechatronics Program Among Nation's Best, Daily News Journal  
5/3/17 - Tester Given National Award for Continuing Education Work, Billings Gazette  
 
Excellence in Action Award 
The Excellence in Action Award honored 11 programs of study across as many Career Clusters 
in 10 states at the 2017 Spring Meeting, as well as highlighted in a national release, resulting 
in a number of media pickups. Staff provided each winner with a press release, two-pager and 
banner. Staff will feature the winners throughout the year in a monthly blog series, at 
conferences and on webinars.      
 
Strategies for Attracting Students to High-Quality CTE  
Edge Research presented the research findings during the Spring Meeting, and staff 
conducted two workshops to help state leaders begin to use the messages and empower 
locals to do the same. Additionally, staff led a webinar on May 16th to further explore the 
research findings and tools. In addition, staff released a number of new tools including:  

 Core Messages for Attracting Students to Career Technical Education 

32

http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/campaign-k-12/2017/05/trumps_proposed_budget_strong_reaction_education.html
http://www.educationdive.com/news/career-and-technical-education-is-a-bipartisan-priority/443020/
https://thejournal.com/articles/2017/05/10/cte-reauthorization-draws-congressional-attention.aspx
http://www.dnj.com/story/news/local/schools/oakland/2017/05/04/oakland-mechatronics-program-among-nations-best/101287082/
http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/high_school_and_beyond/2017/05/stigma_hobbles_career_and_technical_education.html
http://www.springfieldnewssun.com/news/local/demand-for-tech-teachers-rises-clark-county-amid-national-shortage/REo0lz0kpIvCEsC1BQITnI/
https://learningpolicyinstitute.org/blog/perkins-reauthorization-opportunity-address-career-technical-education-teacher-shortages
https://learningpolicyinstitute.org/blog/perkins-reauthorization-opportunity-address-career-technical-education-teacher-shortages
http://www.wdam.com/story/35524383/jcjcs-emt-program-earns-excellence-in-action-national-award
http://www.lsjournal.com/2017/05/24/146376/summit-tech-earns-national-recognition.html
https://www.benzinga.com/pressreleases/17/05/p9403377/milton-hershey-school-receives-national-excellence-in-action-award-for-
https://www.benzinga.com/pressreleases/17/05/p9403377/milton-hershey-school-receives-national-excellence-in-action-award-for-
http://www.dnj.com/story/news/local/schools/oakland/2017/05/04/oakland-mechatronics-program-among-nations-best/101287082/
http://billingsgazette.com/news/local/tester-given-national-award-for-continuing-education-work/article_1c7409b5-ccdc-586f-bf30-eb1363455e36.html
https://careertech.org/excellence-action-2017
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/CoreMessages_CTEValue.pdf


 
 

 

9

 Dos and Don'ts for Engaging Students and Parents around CTE 
 Summary of Messages to Engage Parents & Students 
 The Value and Promise of Career Technical Education Fact Sheet 
 Making a Winning Case for CTE: How State Leaders Can Put This Research to Work  
 Coming soon: Advocacy 101, How Local Leaders Can Put This Research to Work, 

PowerPoint and Talking Points 
 
Staff is continuing to work with the four states selected for technical assistance through 
monthly technical assistance calls, and bi-monthly cross-state calls.   
 

 

Below is a list of Advance CTE’s staff most impactful or otherwise notable engagement activities last month 

PRESENTATIONS 

 Moderated panel at Apprenticeship Forward conference 
 Presented at US News World & Report STEM Solutions conference 
 Presented on New Skills for Youth accountability affinity group call 
 Presentation on Federal Policy at the 37th Annual National Association for 

Career and Technical Education Information (NACTEI) Conference in Little 
Rock, AR 

  
EVENTS ATTENDED 

 Participated in Career Readiness Expert Working group (CREW) around 
credentials of value 

 PostSec Data Working Group Monthly Meeting (by phone) 
 Four Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Meetings  
 Coalition to Invest in America's Workforce Meeting (by phone) 
 The Cybersecurity Workforce: Challenges and Potential Solutions panel event 

hosted by the Senate CTE Caucus   
 The opportunities of career and technical education: Remarks and discussion 

with House Education and Workforce Chairwoman Virginia Foxx (R-NC) event 
hosted by American Enterprise Institute 

 The House Labor, Health and Human Services, and Related Agencies 
Appropriations Subcommittee Hearing on the Department of Education 
Budget  

 Pathways to College Completion event hosted by House Education & 
Workforce Committee Democrats 

 U.S. Department of Education Briefing on the President’s Fiscal Year 2018 
(FY18) Budget Request 

 Opportunity America’s Higher Education Act Meeting 

OTHER PARTNERS 
ENGAGED 
 

 Worked with AIR Center on Great Teachers and Leaders to plan workshops 
and working groups related to our December 2016 State of CTE report on 
industry experts 

 Began planning for the next State of CTE report with the American School 
Counselors Association, focused on career development 

Strategic Priority: Expand awareness of, support for, and access to high-quality CTE by leading, 
building and maintaining strategic partnerships. 

33

https://careertech.org/sites/default/files/Value%26Promise_Dos_Donts.pdf
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/Value%26Promise_Message_Summary_2017.pdf
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/Value%26Promise_FastFacts.pdf
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/Value%26Promise_WinningCaseCTE_StateLeaders.pdf


 
 

 

10

 Department of Defense Educational Activities (DoDEA) 
 Co-hosted annual meeting of ACTE and Advance CTE officers 
 Associated Equipment Distributors  
 Education Trust 
 National Adult Education Professional Development Consortium 
 NCT3 
 Harris Solutions 
 OCTAE 
 Education Advisory Board  

 
 

34



 
  
 
 
 

Upcoming Advance CTE and Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings  
Advance CTE Board Meetings 

 Board Meeting on Governance – August 24, 2017 at 1:00 – 2:00 p.m. ET via conference call 
 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 9 a.m. – Noon ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 

The Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings 
 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 3:30 – 5:00 p.m. ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 

Joint Board Meeting  
 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 12:30 – 3:30 p.m. ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 

 
State CTE Director Changes  
Transitions 

 In June, Advance CTE received a number of notices regarding State Director 
transitions:  

o Tennessee: Casey Haugner Wrenn was appointed in late June to replace 
Danielle Mezera.  

o South Carolina: Ron Roveri has accepted a position at the local level, effective 
July 1. Advance CTE is working with the office to maintain communications 
during this transition. 

o Wisconsin: Kathy Cullen has announced that she will retire in September.  
 Additionally, the following states remain without permanent leadership: Alabama, 

DC, New York, Oregon, and Texas. 
 

Mentor pairings:  
 Cathie Raymond of Arizona has been matched with Thalea Longhurst of Utah.  
 Marci Johnson of Illinois has been matched with Guy Jackson of Wyoming.  

 
Administrative Updates 
 
We wish to extend a great big thank you to Jo Anne Honeycutt for her year as Advance CTE/The 
Center to Advance CTE”s President. Under her leadership we accomplished much – adopted the new 
membership structure, expanded the reach of the Center through grants that focused on parents and 
students perceptions of CTE and apprenticeship. We also had the highest-attended spring meeting on 
record and laid the groundwork for important work ahead – an expanded leadership program, Career 
Clusters task force and a new Perkins.   
 
We wish to thank Vanessa Cooley, State Director in Rhode Island for her service on the Board as a 
regional representative and to Rod Duckworth, who is finally able to catch a breath as he ends his 
tenure as an Advance CTE officer.  And finally, Tim Hodges, a public member of our Center Board. 

Advance CTE / Center to Advance CTE 
Board of Directors’ Update 

June 2017 

QUICK UPDATES 
 

35



  2

Thank you for sticking with us when we got into the weeds and for helping develop our memberships’ 
leadership and knowledge through Gallup resources.  
 
As of July 1, we welcome Meg Harvey, State Director in Maine to the Board, as a regional 
representative and Sarah Heath, State Director in Colorado, as our new Secretary/Treasurer. We look 
forward to learning from and with you!  And next month we’ll introduce you to the individual 
replacing Tim on the Center Board!  
 

Finance Update:   
  
As of June 30, the FY17 fiscal year comes to a close. We are working with the accountant to begin to 
close out the year’s financials. The numbers below do not reflect June reconciliations, which is when 
final adjustments are made to the accrual entries, bad debt is recognized for uncollectable income 
and payroll, benefits and investments for the month will be recorded. The annual audit will take place 
in mid-November.  
 

Advance CTE Budget Snapshot  Center to Advance CTE Budget  Snapshot 
 Received 101% of budgeted income  Received 88% of budgeted income 
 Expended 79% of budgeted expenses  Expended 59% of budgeted expenses 
 
Fundraising  
Advance CTE is currently pursuing a variety of federal, corporate and foundation contacts to discuss 
potential grants and contracts. Below is a chart explaining this month’s engagement with various 
development opportunities.   
 
 

Grant/Proposal/ 
Contract 

Organization 
/Partner 

Engagement  in Past Month Status 

Siemens 
Foundation 

 

This month, we had a call with our program officer who 
reported Siemens was extremely pleased with the research 
conducted by Advance CTE and the overall initiative. We 
are now working on a two-year grant proposal, which will 
continue to focus on providing technical assistance to 
states but also build a set of tools and trainings targeted at 
activating and recruiting champions within the guidance 
and career development community.  
 
A fuller update is below about Strategies for Recruiting 
Students into High-quality CTE below.  

Ongoing 
 

New Skills for 
Youth 

JP Morgan 
Chase 
CCSSO 

A fuller update is below about recent and upcoming 
initiatives and deliverables supported by the NSFY grant.  

Ongoing 

IDIQ – 
Connecting 
Secondary CTE 
& 
Apprenticeships 

OCTAE 

 Earlier this month, we released our major deliverable for 
this contract, a paper on sites that had connected 
secondary CTE students with apprenticeships. We are 
continuing to provide support for the final set of 
deliverables, which will be released by September 2017. 

Ongoing 

Strategic Priority: Ensure strong organizational governance and fiscal security for both Advance 
CTE and The Center to Advance CTE 

36



  3

New State 
Director 
Leadership 
Program 

PMIEF 

We made outreach to two funders/partners about possible 
support for our New State Director Leadership program. 
We had a very productive call with the Project 
Management Institute Education Foundation (PMIEF), 
which may lead to opportunities for in-kind resources and 
training around portfolio management for any and all 
members. We will know more about this opportunity in 
July. 

Preliminary 

Misc.  

Advance CTE participated in a funder-led meeting around 
career pathways, with a number of other national partners, 
state leaders and funders, including Siemens, JPMorgan 
Chase and the Ford Foundation. It’s unclear what the 
outcomes will be from this meeting.  
 
Advance CTE had a call with the PwC Charitable 
Foundation, at their request. They are interested in 
expanding into the CTE space and wanted to learn about 
us and what we see as the biggest challenges facing the 
field. We are planning to follow up in early July with a short 
document articulating some of those biggest challenges.  
 
In the month ahead, we have meetings scheduled with 
Joyce Foundation, Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation, John M 
Belk Endowment and Ballmer Group. 
 
We are also pursuing another NSF grant, in partnership 
with EDC, and in discussions with RTI regarding a potential 
collaboration to support states’ data and accountability 
needs.  

Preliminary  

 

 
Membership Update  
 In May, Advance CTE received 2 new memberships – both Associate, Non-state. 
 
Total membership as of June 30, 2017: 354 
 State Director: 54  
 Associate, State: 93 
 Associate, Non-state: 100 
 Organizational: 36 organizations (representing 107 individuals) 
 
FY 18 State Membership 
Because July 1 fell on a weekend, the expanded state membership was launched on June 28. Staff 
have given thoughtful consideration to the implementation process, understanding that more than 
half of the new state members are entirely new to Advance CTE – and for some, even to CTE overall. 
With that in mind, staff created a series of four emails to serve as a “New Member Toolkit,” which 
covers the administrative basics, as well as federal and state policy, and communications. All state 
members began receiving this email series on June 28, and will receive a weekly installment every 
Thursday. 

Strategic Priority: Provide, encourage and support professional learning to expand the skills, 
content knowledge and leadership of state CTE leaders. 

37



  4

 
In total, 45 states, 1 territory and the District of Columbia added 161 individuals to their state 
membership for FY18. Based on the discussion that took place during the Spring Board Meeting, the 
numbers below have been revised to remove the loose designations of “counterpart” and “Perkins 
manager” until we can get better data. Those two designations have been folded into either “other 
state agency” or “state CTE office” based on their employer. Here is a brief rundown of the numbers:  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Secondary, 83, 
52%

Postsecondary, 
44, 27%

Workforce 
Development/Ad

ult, 15, 9%

Standalone 
Agency, 14, 9% Other, 5, 3%

STATE MEMBERS BY SECTOR

New, 101, 
63%

Existing, 60, 
37%

NEW VS. EXISTING ADVANCE CTE MEMBERS

38



  5

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

State CTE Office, 
87, 54%

Perkins Eligible 
Agency, 6, 4%

Other State 
Agency/System, 

53, 33%

ACTE, 4, 2%

Employer, 1, 1% Local, 9, 6%

STATE MEMBERS BY ROLE

55

4

30

4

1

6

87

6

53

4

1

9

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

State CTE Office

Perkins Eligible Agency

Other State Agency/System

ACTE

Employer

Local

BY SECTOR: NEW VS. OVERALL

OVERALL NEW

39



  6

0

3,000

6,000

9,000

Jun‐16 Aug‐16 Oct‐16 Dec‐16 Feb‐17 Apr‐17 Jun‐17

Resource Center Monthly Pageviews
June '16 ‐ June '17

 
 
 
Member Resources and Supports  
 
State Policy Update:  
 
New Skills for Youth: The NSFY team continues to work with Phase Two states on refining their 
outcomes goals and designing an effective progress monitoring system. The project team has recently 
begun working on the NSFY Fall Convening, taking place in Cincinnati, Ohio November 1-3, 2017.  
 
Staff began drafting surveys directed at State CTE Directors as well as school counselors in preparation 
for the upcoming State of CTE report focused on career advisement. The survey will launch in early 
August.   
 
Rural briefs: Advance CTE staff are working on a three-part series examining access and quality of CTE 
in rural communities. The series will explore vexing challenges -- such as providing diverse program 
offerings, expanding the rural CTE teacher pipeline and increasing learning access to opportunities -- 
and will highlight innovative state solutions. Our team aims to conclude research shortly and plans to 
release the first brief in July or early August. 
 
Resource Center: June marked the 
first anniversary of the Learning that 
Works Resource Center’s launch. The 
website went live on June 22, 2016, 
and has seen remarkable success in 
that time. Over the past year, the 
reports, tools and policy profiles in 
the Resource Center have been 
accessed more than 80,000 times, 
demonstrating the platform’s 
continued value and utility in the 
field.  

47

24

14

11

5

83

44

15

14

5

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90

Secondary

Postsecondary

Workforce Dev/Adult

Standalone Agency

Other

BY ROLE: NEW VS. OVERALL

OVERALL NEW

40



  7

The most visited resource topic since the Resource Center was launched is Career Advisement, with an 
average of 197 hits every month. Additionally, three of Advance CTE’s publications were the most 
accessed resources over the past year. These include:  

 Credentials of Value: State Strategies for Identifying and Endorsing Industry-Recognized 
Credentials, 

 The State of Career Technical Education: Increasing Access to Industry Experts in High Schools and 
 The Value and Promise of Career Technical Education: Results from a National Survey of Parents 

and Students.  
Advance CTE is currently fielding a feedback survey to learn who is using the Resource Center, how 
they are using it, and what can be done to improve the quality of the content and design. Based on 
the feedback collected through this survey, we plan to identify modifications to make the Resource 
Center an even more valuable tool.  
 
Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool: Staff used the Advance CTE Spring Meeting to test with 
members a draft slice of the program approval policy benchmark tool. This tool lists core elements 
necessary for any effective program approval policy, elements which were chosen based on research 
and interviews with State Directors in secondary and postsecondary. The tool also contains an 
illustrative rubric which further defines the core elements and helps states identify gaps in current 
policy. 
 
Based on feedback from the Spring Meeting, the tool is being updated, and will be shared again with 
volunteer states and partners in July for their review and feedback. The tool will be released in the fall, 
and staff are planning to offer a few states the chance to participate in an Advance CTE-led self-
assessment on the tool’s criteria.  
 
CTE Virtual Institute: Staff have continued work on the Virtual Institute, including drafting scripts for 
instructional videos. The Institute is a web-based, comprehensive crash course on high-quality CTE 
designed for new audiences with limited knowledge or awareness of the field. It will build upon 
resources in the Learning that Works Resource Center to guide participants along a modular 
exploration of the world of CTE, and will feature informative new videos and interaction with experts 
on staff. The Virtual Institute is scheduled to launch later this fall. 
 
Industry Expert Working Groups: Staff sent out invitations to select states and national partners for 
participation in working groups focused on increasing access to industry experts. The first will kick off 
in late July and will focus on exploring innovative roles outside of full-time teaching for industry 
experts. This group includes representatives from California, Hawai’i, Kentucky, Nebraska, Ohio, New 
Jersey, ACTE, Project Lead the Way and the US Chamber of Commerce Foundation. The second group, 
focusing on strategies within secondary and postsecondary relationships, will kick off in late August. 
Representatives from Hawai’i, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, North Carolina, Oregon, Tennessee, ACTE, Jobs 
for the Future and the National Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment Partnerships (NACEP) have 
confirmed their participation.  
 
Career Clusters Taskforce The Task Force will be comprised of about 12 - 15 national, state and local 
leaders from K-12, post-secondary, business and industry, and workforce development who can offer 
insights into where the framework can have the greatest impact and the steps Advance CTE should 
take to achieve such an impact.  
 
The Career Cluster Task Force’s Charge: 
Members of the Career Cluster Task Force will commit to engaging in a robust process, which utilizes 
various data and analyses and leads to the submission of final recommendations and action steps for 
Advance CTE. 

41



  8

 
Specifically, the Task Force will: 
1. Gain an understanding of the Framework’s influence and impact on the greater community of 
education, industry and policymakers at the national, state and local levels, leading to the 
identification of the key elements that drive stakeholder use of the existing framework. 
2. Come to agreement on the “non-negotiables” that define a successful CTE program and larger 
career readiness approach that must be included in the revised Framework. 
3. Ascertain how a revised Framework should reflect and promote relevant career readiness programs, 
policies and initiatives, leading to the achievement of career-ready learners and a well-skilled 
workforce. 
4. Frame a sustainable process that ensures a revised Framework’s ongoing relevance in an ever-
changing, dynamic world, including outlining an approach 
 
The first and only in person meeting of the Task Force will happen in late August. The goal is to bring 
forth a set of recommendations to the Board at the February 2018 strategic planning retreat.  
 
Meetings/Events  
 
Registration for the 2017 Fall Meeting will launch in mid-July. Staff have already been hard at work 
developing a high-quality agenda for this year’s meeting. Based on lessons learned from the Spring 
Meeting, staff are aiming to be able to post a robust agenda as early as mid-to-late July. The focus on 
the agenda will be on the first and fifth pillars of Putting Learner Success First and will bring back the 
successful workshop format, to provide deeper, more focused professional development along with 
our regular format of plenary and breakout sessions. 
 
 

  
This month we launched our blog series to highlight the opportunities and initiatives aligned with 
each principle.  
 

 
Federal Advocacy Plan:     
CTE received a great deal of attention in Washington during the month of June. As updates continue 
to trickle in about a tough fiscal environment and “tough choices” in the 2018 Fiscal Year (FY18) 
Budget, we have been meeting with congressional staff to ensure they are aware of the detrimental 
impact of a cut to the Perkins Basic State Grants. In addition, Workforce Development Week increased 
the focus on the skills gap, the need to better prepare students for the workforce, and how 
apprenticeship can help solve these issues. Immediately following Workforce Development Week, we 
saw the passage of H.R. 2353, the Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act 
(which would reauthorize the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006 (Perkins)) in 
the House. As such, we have been turning our attention to the Senate, where prospects for passage 
are not as optimistic as they were in the House.  
 

Strategic Priority: Build on our existing strong public policy leadership by developing and 
disseminating legislation and public policy that impacts education, economic and workforce 

development in support of expanded access to and quality of CTE.

Strategic Priority: Lead a cross-organizational and cross-state effort to successfully build 
awareness, advocacy and accomplishment of the Putting Learner Success First: A Shared 

Vision for the Future of CTE. 

42

http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13420
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001-kHNDn_-xVWk_7R8FLQeTduj3yhhPoDeCSDV8Yf84IDXHHP__o7he6DvCY8FKkwfxFf7ogm86nftsnMYRLdmsyjVzeqXiebgsLwaNVlwNNRUAQY5vndUrIhr5V2j3mihxzD6RcYkeEayVP-eomJs2TEYoOoy-cv1I00yrJm6qd80dlkPVQBp5wKQsCJ-DFgL&c=6ntsQUjZIpwUSLZHn-cOhHcj-pUES1pP9gPx0zKbUZUIUt2EFLyGlg==&ch=1JNBS0UmY5XiqC_uHgCwS85P7ghV3Zxjupc5VHkbF1XA8B8x0dVkfA==


  9

Perkins: On June 22, the House of Representatives overwhelmingly passed H.R. 2353, the 
Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act (which would reauthorize 
Perkins), by a voice vote (see our statement here and our summary of the bill here). Twenty five 
Representatives (both Democrats and Republican) from 19 states spoke in favor of the legislation prior 
to the vote. Advance CTE's Executive Director, Kimberly Green, was invited by congressional staff to 
participate in a press conference that occurred immediately following the passage of the bill. The 
press conference included remarks from seven Representatives from both sides of the aisle, all of 
whom spoke in favor of the bill. In addition, three other CTE leaders spoke (find more here) about the 
importance and value of CTE and passing this legislation.  
 
Before the vote, we sent a joint letter with ACTE to the House of Representatives expressing our 
support with the caveat that we have a remaining concern about the definition of a 
secondary CTE concentrator. While we are urging the Senate to take up Perkins reauthorization as 
soon as possible, congressional staff have indicated that they are unlikely to take up the bill before 
healthcare legislation is squared away. In addition, the same concerns about the authority of the 
Secretary of Education to negotiate performance targets with states and sanction states by 
withholding funds for failure to meet performance targets have arisen. The Leadership Conference for 
Civil and Human Rights raised these concerns in their letter to House of Representatives (which 19 
organizations signed onto) before the vote and we have heard from congressional staff that secretarial 
authority is likely to remain a sticking point.  
 
In an effort to urge the Senate to act on the bill, we have asked State CTE Directors from states with 
Senator on the Health, Education, Labor and Pensions (HELP) Committee to contact their Senators to 
urge them to take up Perkins reauthorization this year. The key messages we suggested were: (1) 
many states are in a holding pattern until a new law is passed, which would allow stakeholders to be 
engaged in developing a new plan that incorporates innovative ideas and best practices into their 
plans and (2) reauthorization sends a strong signal to appropriators who may not see cuts to CTE as 
significant since reauthorization is long overdue. In addition to this outreach, we will continue to work 
with partner organizations and congressional staff to develop and execute a strategy that will (ideally) 
result in a bipartisan reauthorization before the end of the year. We are concerned that the longer the 
process is drawn out, the greater the likelihood that (1) Perkins will become a highly politicized issue 
and (2) more groups will want to include additional provisions in the legislation (which will likely 
dilute the purpose and goals of the legislation).  
 
Budget / Appropriations:  On June 6, the Senate Labor, Health and Human Services, Education and 
Related Agencies Appropriations Subcommittee held a hearing on the President's FY18 Budget for the 
U.S. Department of Education (ED). Prior to the hearing, Advance CTE contributed to the written 
testimony submitted to subcommittee by the Campaign to Invest in America's Workforce. We also 
partnered with the Association for Career and Technical Education (ACTE) to send questions 
to members of the Subcommittee about the rationale for the proposed cuts to CTE.  
 
We have continued our advocacy efforts around the proposed cuts by meeting with several key 
Congressional staffers and will continue to meet with others over the summer. In addition, we 
released this opinion piece about the Administration's rationale for the cuts and this chart that shows 
the appropriations for Perkins since FY 2004. 
 
Congressional Offices Engaged in June 2017:  

 Phone calls with Steve Townsend, Sen. Enzi (R-WY)  
 Phone call with Allie Kimmel, Senate HELP Committee, Minority staff 
 Meeting with Robin Juliano, House Labor-HHS-ED Appropriations Subcommittee, Minority 

staff  

43

http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001-kHNDn_-xVWk_7R8FLQeTduj3yhhPoDeCSDV8Yf84IDXHHP__o7he9Kj5br0xNQlSD8-7W9ACvwe0dadNRJHhQVOdYKKnOyXXqbut2wzJAz0K8p3gZU2DXAyrGvPwI_c7yWFLfczFeGzacK8TfrBUfoRIVJ7IhvWPCNbAL_tsTJlapvWNLNnUavHCCx8Dh1Dp1LKPuSKHBmr-vy3gVgpuHJZhWocDztno5qjBQuoF0nCGT50QGJu17PxZNrUJh9H__0HFXt7wrcsCBxl_rGJpHSf7w1-zI_11I8A3RtUU9Q=&c=6ntsQUjZIpwUSLZHn-cOhHcj-pUES1pP9gPx0zKbUZUIUt2EFLyGlg==&ch=1JNBS0UmY5XiqC_uHgCwS85P7ghV3Zxjupc5VHkbF1XA8B8x0dVkfA==
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/H.R.2353_Summary_Analysis_Floor.pdf
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001-kHNDn_-xVWk_7R8FLQeTduj3yhhPoDeCSDV8Yf84IDXHHP__o7he3VC9aNAjITqVOV4L6Zrpo3PfEKaSTfCaLyMJ2W8qaG1snJdDGZBiRBokX1nnzuiMpdCD0c_PjI8KObKeL4rfDujuOFb6YAXIhMKDQwz_m4EV6KgYIKWrbu6pWAotU2ImgBMoEiPzz1N&c=6ntsQUjZIpwUSLZHn-cOhHcj-pUES1pP9gPx0zKbUZUIUt2EFLyGlg==&ch=1JNBS0UmY5XiqC_uHgCwS85P7ghV3Zxjupc5VHkbF1XA8B8x0dVkfA==
https://cte.careertech.org/sites/default/files/ACTE_AdvanceCTE_HouseFloorLetter_062117_FINAL.pdf
http://civilrights.org/h-r-2353-strengthening-career-technical-education-21st-century-act/
http://www.americasworkforce.org/latest-action-list/2017/6/9/testimony-submitted-to-the-senate-subcommittee-on-labor-hhs-and-education-and-related-agencies-on-funding-for-federal-education-and-training-programs-at-labor-education-and-hhs
http://www.americasworkforce.org/latest-action-list/2017/6/9/testimony-submitted-to-the-senate-subcommittee-on-labor-hhs-and-education-and-related-agencies-on-funding-for-federal-education-and-training-programs-at-labor-education-and-hhs
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001-kHNDn_-xVWk_7R8FLQeTduj3yhhPoDeCSDV8Yf84IDXHHP__o7he80KZxilgHtSklliuGDGNp7vjFGWd7N-nCS0eIIJjUNtmT28oCB2KMji7jtDnWHS7vvTvg3iGu5RiN7_F8EXjgMic9eZEwKLhny9-R-81MnKOF2dFIWtAJvG3UVu_606yXORz2CA8hMn3Nwx4DTXz4PoT7MZP6ObsuTHIJevzJzoDCjeqE7auRntLuIcAvY78R71Nq9FEIPL&c=6ntsQUjZIpwUSLZHn-cOhHcj-pUES1pP9gPx0zKbUZUIUt2EFLyGlg==&ch=1JNBS0UmY5XiqC_uHgCwS85P7ghV3Zxjupc5VHkbF1XA8B8x0dVkfA==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001-kHNDn_-xVWk_7R8FLQeTduj3yhhPoDeCSDV8Yf84IDXHHP__o7he6DvCY8FKkwfyIG-TMplEdOA82xd-zPBgvcEBrqfE1DSZXc2GoGcwD8DWrdbpp6en8nrOAGHE3hrDfQHRczOjGLHeJfrU0ehzKbtPc1zgA677msT-2ebfVWqeOYRyh6KbZv1Dpq_avNpd5t5k2354aZ2aeoGx05JlZQ6a6U_prdpD7xyBpvMyOS1budZhiFpJxjpEiSqqaFTh8ohP4V7EWmwasQdTnAAKQ==&c=6ntsQUjZIpwUSLZHn-cOhHcj-pUES1pP9gPx0zKbUZUIUt2EFLyGlg==&ch=1JNBS0UmY5XiqC_uHgCwS85P7ghV3Zxjupc5VHkbF1XA8B8x0dVkfA==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001-kHNDn_-xVWk_7R8FLQeTduj3yhhPoDeCSDV8Yf84IDXHHP__o7he640WCk-bVU2aPTyNpvvrl879_px72GfpvbLoZGZIcSduF4BUdiWvAeU_VSh3cFF2U9o161EiL_9z7NUGConMY_xG1YxVAZunIDdDIAZMr_suD-gKxjscuSsxgGIb5hZyt3vnbOEep01Ov1A5eMKFSw6G6DMta-9k2gf82o-diQ-UoxNRhnAqv59QmT6OcQjzqK-qMN3ZCAei91V5ASooRfBAUSe0cLGsDUOSu-cwMOvtYTXir86H7o=&c=6ntsQUjZIpwUSLZHn-cOhHcj-pUES1pP9gPx0zKbUZUIUt2EFLyGlg==&ch=1JNBS0UmY5XiqC_uHgCwS85P7ghV3Zxjupc5VHkbF1XA8B8x0dVkfA==


 
 

10

 Meeting with Mike Gentile, Senate Labor-HHS-Education Appropriations Subcommittee, 
Majority staff 

 Meeting with Eva Vrana, Rep. Moolenaar (R-MI) 
 Meeting with Alicia Molt-West, Rep. Pocan (D-WI) 
 Meeting with Geoff Browning, Rep. Clark (D-MA) 
 Meeting with Cristina Diaz-Torres, Sen. Whitehouse (D-RI)  

 
COMMUNICATIONS REPORT 
 

 

Major Organizational 
Releases/Initiatives  

 The Value and 
Promise of CTE (368 
views)  

 Resource Center 
(1149)  

 Apprenticeship 
Report 
(291) 

Acquisition of site users 
 Organic search (47%) 
 Direct (33%) 
 Referral (18%) 

 

 

16 Blog Posts Published 
Most visited blogs:  

 New Resources to Help 
you Sell CTE To Parents 
& Students 

 CTE is Not an Either/Or  
 Secretary DeVos 

Defends Cuts to Career 
Technical Education, 
Continues to Promote 
School Choice 

41591
51513 48505

43086 36436 37753

19538
, 31282 , 38115 , 36199 33089 27766 28836

14853

135592

192713
176042

149192
132957

118286

60962

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

Dec‐16 Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17

Website Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

1438
1652 1733

1676
1349

1776
1567

1033
1432 1420

1390
1106

1434
1247

2529 2396 2631 2608

2027

2587
2383

0

1000

2000

3000

Dec‐16 Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17

Learning that Works Blog Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

44

https://careertech.org/recruitmentstrategies
http://www.careertech.org/resource-center
https://careertech.org/resource/connecting-secondary-cte-and-apprenticeships
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13287
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13304
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13301


 
 

11

 

 
 
Facebook: +30 
 
Twitter: +144 
 
 

 
Media 
Advance CTE was featured in the media this month including:  

 Preparing Students for  a Fluid World, Alexandria Gazette Packet 
 Some Basics on President Trump and Apprenticeships, AEI  
 Trump Makes a Big Push for High School Apprenticeships, Education Week 
 Lee’s Summit, Kansas City Both Under-Celebrated Technology Hubs, Lee’s Summit 

Tribune 
 

Advance CTE also published an op-ed with the Association for Career and Technical 
Education discussing the flawed justification for proposed CTE budget cuts.  
 
Strategies for Attracting Students to High-Quality CTE  
Staff has continued to develop resources for this initiative, with three being launched in July. 
Additionally, states have continued their pilot activities including New Jersey, which 
conducted a career fair with more than 300 students and parents featuring STEM careers. 
Maryland has conducted focus groups in two districts to better hone CTE messages that 
resonate with parents and students in those communities.  
 
Staff is continuing to work with the four states selected for technical assistance through 
monthly technical assistance calls, and bi-monthly cross-state calls.   

 
 
Below is a list of Advance CTE’s staff most impactful or otherwise notable engagement activities from 
last month 

EVENTS 
ATTENDED 

 Apprenticeship Forward partner meeting 
 Connecting Credentials workgroup on “Making All Learning Count” 
 Attended Aligning Systems and Policies to Support Multiple Postsecondary 

Strategic Priority: Expand awareness of, support for, and access to high-quality CTE by leading, 
building and maintaining strategic partnerships. 

2911

2227

3032

2249

3249

2266

3393

2283

3507

2281

3683

2292

3827

0 2000 4000 6000

Total Twitter Followers

Total Facebook Likes

Social Media 

Jun‐17

May‐17

Apr‐17

Mar‐17

Feb‐17

Jan‐17

Dec‐16

45

http://www.alexandriagazette.com/news/2017/jun/30/preparing-students-fluid-world/
https://www.aei.org/publication/some-basics-on-president-trump-and-apprenticeships/
http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/high_school_and_beyond/2017/06/trump_makes_big_push_for_high_school_apprenticeships.html
http://lstribune.net/lees-summit-news/lee-s-summit-kansas-city-both-under-celebrated-technology-hubs.htm
https://medium.com/@ACTE/the-flawed-justification-for-proposed-career-tech-budget-cuts-6babc9cbc36c


 
 

12

  Pathways AYPF/JFF Capitol Hill forum, Washington, DC 
 Attended STELAR I-STEM grantee conference, Arlington, VA 
 National Leadership and Skills Conference, hosted by SkillsUSA  
 Whiteboard Advisors’ Policy Forum  
 Women in Government Relations’ Education Task Force 2017 Legislative 

Forum  
 Senate CTE Caucus Briefing on  “Building America’s Infrastructure 

Workforce” 
 College in High School Alliance – HEA Subgroup Meeting by phone  
 PostSec Data Working Group Meeting  
 Four Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Meetings  
 Campaign to Invest in America's Workforce Meeting (by phone) 
 The Senate Labor, Health and Human Services, and Related Agencies 

Appropriations Subcommittee Hearing on the Department of Education 
Budget  

 Opportunity America’s Jobs and Careers Coalition Meeting 
 Workcred Credentialing Body Advisory Council 
 National Career Academy Coalition Board Meeting 
 National Coalition on Career Development  
 Funders meeting (Ford, JPMC, Dimon, Siemens, Bloomberg, etc.) 
 ANSI- CAPAC  
 

OTHER 
PARTNERS 
ENGAGED 

 

 Worked with AIR Center on Great Teachers and Leaders to plan workshops 
and working groups related to our December 2016 State of CTE report on 
industry experts 

 Continued working on the next State of CTE report with the American 
School Counselors Association, focused on career development 

 New America 
 Magnet Schools of America 
 Education Strategy Group (around ESSA brief) 
 DoDEA 
 Asia Society 
 Gulf Power 
 National Alliance for Partnerships in Equity 
 Meta Metrics 
 Harris School Solutions 
 Penn Foster  

 
 
 

46



 

 Upcoming Advance CTE and Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings  
Advance CTE Board Meetings 

 Board Meeting on Governance – August 24, 2017 at 1:00 – 2:00 p.m. ET via conference call 
 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 9 a.m. – Noon ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 

The Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings 
 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 3:30 – 5:00 p.m. ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 

Joint Board Meeting  
 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 12:30 – 3:30 p.m. ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 

 
New faces on the Advance CTE and Center to Advance CTE Boards:  
We are pleased to welcome Jeralyn Jargo, State CTE Director in Minnesota to the Advance CTE Board. 
Jeralyn joins us as the Region V representative, filling the balance of Kathy Cullen’s term. We thank 
Kathy for her service and wish her all the very best in retirement and grandmother-hood.  
 
We also are pleased to welcome Jennifer Grove to the Center to Advance CTE Board. Jennifer is 
beginning her three-year term as a public member representative to the Board. s. She has worked with 
The Southern Company for over 20 years. As Gulf Power’s Workforce Development Coordinator, she is 
responsible for the creation and management of talent development partnerships to grow Gulf 
Power’s future workforce and to enhance Northwest Florida’s economic development position. These 
partnerships span the entire talent supply chain, beginning with early learning programs and 
continuing to elementary energy career awareness programs, middle school STEM (science, 
technology, engineering and math) programs, high school talent pipeline programs, and post-
secondary technical and engineering program partnerships. She is also engaged in workforce 
development initiatives at both the Southern Company and national level through the Southern 
Company Workforce Development Council and the national Center for Energy Workforce 
Development. Ms. Grove was recognized in 2012 by US News as one of the Top 100 Women in STEM 
for her role in STEM talent development. 
  
State CTE Director Changes  
Transitions 

 In July, Advance CTE received the following notices regarding State Director transitions:  
o Indiana: Chris Deaton, who previously served in the state’s CTE office, was appointed 

as the new State CTE Director 
o District of Columbia: Chad Maclin, a longtime local CTE administrator in Virginia, was 

named to lead DC’s state CTE office. 
o Wisconsin: Effective August 6, Colleen McCabe has been tapped to succeed Kathy 

Cullen, who will retire in September.  
o South Dakota: Tiffany Sanderson announced that she will leave her post as State 

Director on September 6. An interim has not yet been named. 
 Additionally, the following states remain without permanent leadership: Alabama, New York, 

Oregon, South Carolina and Texas. 

Advance CTE / Center to Advance CTE 
Board of Directors’ Update 

July 2017 

QUICK UPDATES 
 

47



  2

 

Finance Update:   
  
As of July 31, 9% of the fiscal year had passed. Below is a quick snapshot of the financial position of 
both organizations.  Please note that the July financials have not been reconciled by the accountant 
yet, so the numbers below do not include any investment fees/income or payroll and benefits 
expenses.  
 

Advance CTE Budget Snapshot  Center to Advance CTE Budget  Snapshot 
 Received 38% of budgeted income  Received 73 % of budgeted income 
 Expended 4 % of budgeted expenses  Expended 4 % of budgeted expenses 

 
Fundraising  
Advance CTE is currently pursuing a variety of federal, corporate and foundation contacts to discuss 
potential grants and contracts. Below is a chart explaining this month’s engagement with various 
development opportunities.   
 
 

Grant/Proposal/ 
Contract 

Organization 
/Partner Engagement  in Past Month Status 

Siemens 
Foundation 

 

In late July, we submitted a proposal to Siemens for a two-
year grant proposal, which will continue to focus on 
providing technical assistance to states but also build a set 
of tools and trainings targeted at activating and recruiting 
champions within the guidance and career development 
community. We are now in the process of refining the 
proposal, which will be finalized in August. Their Board will 
meet in the fall, which is when they approve new grants.   

Ongoing 
 

New Skills for 
Youth 

JP Morgan 
Chase; CCSSO 

A fuller update is below about recent and upcoming 
initiatives and deliverables supported by the NSFY grant.  

Ongoing 

IDIQ – 
Connecting 
Secondary CTE 
& 
Apprenticeships 

OCTAE 

We are continuing to provide support for the final set of 
deliverables, including a resource guide on connecting CTE 
and apprenticeships for state and local leaders, which will 
be released by September 2017. 

Ongoing 

New State 
Director 
Leadership 
Program 

PMIEF 

In June, we had a very productive call with the Project 
Management Institute Education Foundation (PMIEF) on 
the new State Director Leadership Program. They were 
interested in providing in-kind resources and training 
around portfolio management for any and all members. We 
have recently followed up to keep the discussion moving.  

Preliminary 

Postsecondary 
program quality 

Joyce 
Foundation 

We have been engaged in discussions with Joyce since last 
fall and had a very productive meeting in July. We are now 
in the early stages of putting together a proposal to use our 
upcoming program approval benchmark tool in a small 
number of states to advance quality CTE programs at the 

Ongoing 

Strategic Priority: Ensure strong organizational governance and fiscal security for both Advance 
CTE and The Center to Advance CTE 

48



  3

postsecondary level. The proposal would be due in early 
Fall, and go into effect in December if approved.  

Misc.  

In July, we had meetings with the Bill & Melinda Gates 
Foundation, the Ballmer Group, PwC Charitable Trust and 
National Science Foundation. Most of these discussions 
were exploratory and set to lay groundwork for future 
opportunities.  

Preliminary  

 

Membership Update  
In addition to the state membership* changes on July 1, Advance CTE received 2 new memberships – 
both Associate, Non-state. 
 
*Note: Moving forward, the state membership category below will also provide a disaggregated count 
of the State Directors and state members. Also notable, the state count no longer includes Michigan, 
which was unable to renew its membership for FY 2018 due to financial difficulties. 
 
Total membership as of June 30, 2017: 437 individuals 

 State Membership: 53 states (representing 53 State Directors and 159 state members)  
 Associate, State: 17 
 Associate, Non-state: 101 
 Organizational: 36 organizations (representing 107 individuals) 

 
The period for membership renewals will end on August 15. After that cut-off date, the numbers may 
fluctuate slightly due to cancellations and write-offs. At the end of August, staff will conduct an audit 
of the membership systems, and will report those results in the September report as part of its 
commitment to sound processes and protocols.  
 
FY 18 State Membership: The state membership launch was well-received by the new and existing 
members. All state members - State Directors and the other associate members covered by the state 
members - received a four-part email series unpacking the breadth of Advance CTE’s resources and 
supports. Staff are working to develop a system for State Directors to add or change state members as 
needed. This system will be launched in August.  
 
Member Resources and Supports  
 
New Skills for Youth Update:  
 
New Skills for Youth: The NSFY team continues to work with Phase Two states on refining their 
outcomes goals and designing an effective progress monitoring system. The project team has recently 
begun working on the NSFY Fall Convening, taking place in Cincinnati, Ohio November 1-3, 2017.  
 
State of CTE: Career Development and Advisement: Staff recently drafted two surveys for the 
upcoming State of CTE report. One survey will be administered to State CTE Directors and the other 
will be administered to a sampling of the American School Counselor Association’s (ASCA’s) 33,000 
members. Additionally, a version of the State CTE Director survey will be sent to state guidance 
directors. All surveys are expected to launch in mid-August, and a preview of the survey conclusions 

Strategic Priority: Provide, encourage and support professional learning to expand the skills, 
content knowledge and leadership of state CTE leaders. 

49



  4

will be presented at the Advance CTE Fall Meeting. The final report will be released in early February 
2018.  
 
Rural briefs: Staff are developing a series of briefs focused on rural access and quality, titled CTE on the 
Frontier, which will be released through the New Skills for Youth initiative. The series aims to identify 
common challenges and lift up innovating state strategies to improve rural program quality, expose 
learners to the world of work, increase the breadth of program offerings and strengthen the rural CTE 
teacher pipeline. The release date for the first brief, originally scheduled for late July, has been delayed 
to allow for additional research and interviews with state directors. That brief is scheduled to be 
released in mid-August. Additionally, Advance CTE made the decision to extend the series to four 
briefs instead of three. 
Resource Center: The Resource Center garnered a lot of traffic in July, primarily due to the successful 
rollout and promotion of Advance CTE’s co-authored report Mapping Career Readiness & ESSA. That 
report, released in partnership with Education Strategy Group, received 1,304 hits in July, setting a 
new record for a publication in its first month. Advance CTE and Education Strategy Group promoted 
the release through guest blog posts, media outreach and the standard social media and email 
promotion.  
 
Overall, the Resource Center received 7,784 hits in July, 
surpassing the average monthly traffic by more than 1,000 
hits. Work-based learning was the top visited resource page, 
partially due to traffic driven through the Apprenticeship 
Forward network. This is the second month that work-based 
learning was the top visited page.  

Separately, Advance CTE staff this month reviewed feedback 
gathered through the Resource Center feedback survey. The 
survey, launched in June, was designed to learn more about 
the Resource Center audience and identify opportunities to 
improve the functionality of the Resource Center and expand 
its offerings. Although the survey’s 47 responses are not enough to provide representative data about 
the Resource Center’s users, the survey provided helpful anecdotal insights into who is using the 
platform. Interestingly, a plurality of survey respondents are from the local level, representing local 
education agencies, local institutions of higher education, or school-based staff. Further, 63 percent of 
respondents reported using the Resource Center at least once a month, and 86 percent said they 
would recommend the Resource Center to a friend.  

State Policy Update:  
 
Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool: After updates to the program approval policy tool were 
made, staff sent the draft for review to eight Advance CTE members and six organizational partners, 
including one representative from a school district. Staff will use the valuable feedback from these 
reviews to update the tool once more before testing it with at least two volunteer states. The tool is 
expected to launch to the public in late September or early October. 

50

https://careertech.org/resource/mapping-career-readiness-essa


  5

CTE Virtual Institute: Development of the CTE Virtual Institute is 
underway, with a schedule launch date of October 23 (immediately 
following Advance CTE’s fall meeting). The CTE Virtual Institute is a 
seven-module, web-based crash course on CTE that is designed to 
educate new audiences on the Putting Learner Success Vision and 
the core components of a high-quality CTE system. In August, staff 
plan to develop short videos that will guide participants through the 
course and make connections across the course material. 
Additionally, Advance CTE developed a new graphic to help promote 
the CTE Virtual Institute. 
 
Industry Expert Working Groups: The first working group kickoff happened in late July with a 
productive call on exploring innovative roles for industry experts. This group includes representatives 
from California, Hawai’i, Kentucky, Nebraska, Ohio, New Jersey, ACTE, Project Lead the Way and the US 
Chamber of Commerce Foundation. Further calls will happen monthly for five months, and 
participants will identify concrete strategies and potential next steps for action. The group will 
conclude with a written report from AIR’s Center on Great Teachers and Leaders.  
The second group, focusing on strategies within secondary and postsecondary relationships, will kick 
off in late August. Representatives from Hawai’i, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, North Carolina, Oregon, 
Tennessee, ACTE, Jobs for the Future and the National Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment Partnerships 
(NACEP) have confirmed their participation.  
 
Meetings/Events  
 

Event Name Date 
Total 

Participants 

Total 
Participating 

State Directors 

% of Registration 
Goal 

2017 Fall Meeting October 16-18 29 11 19% 

 
Registration for the 2017 Fall Meeting launched in mid-July, and is already ahead of previous Fall 
Meeting benchmarks for registration. Early Bird registration will end on August 18, and regular 
registration closes on September 25. Meeting sponsorship launched on August 2, and updates will be 
provided on sponsorship commitments as they begin to roll in.  
 
Additionally, staff have already been hard at work developing a high-quality agenda for this year’s 
meeting, and will announce the full agenda in August. The meeting will also feature a day-long pre-
meeting workshop for New State Directors. On August 3, staff sent a letter to OCTAE on behalf of 
Board President Pradeep Kotamraju formally inviting the OCTAE staff to participate in the Fall 
Meeting. This request came from OCTAE staff, who now must receive this type of invitation in order to 
participate in such meetings.  
 
 
 
 
 

51



  6

  
We recently launched our blog series to highlight the opportunities and initiatives aligned with each 
principle.  
 
More importantly, as an organization, we have embedded Putting Learner Success First in all of our 
organizational priorities, strategies and initiatives.  While we continue to present at state and national 
conferences on Putting Learner Success First, share our resources, including the video released in May, 
and engage our partners, the reach and impact of the shared vision is most evident in the success and 
reach of our aligned research, communications and member supports. 
 

 
Federal Advocacy Plan:     
While Congress did not pass any major CTE or appropriations legislation in July, we continued our 
efforts to push the Senate to consider reauthorization of the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 
Education Act of 2006 (Perkins). In addition, we communicated with congressional staff about the 
detrimental impact of a cut to the Perkins Basic State Grants. We also weighed in on the “Building U.S. 
Infrastructure by Leveraging Demands for Skills” (BUILDS) Act. This bill would authorize the Secretary 
of Labor to “award grants for promoting industry or sector partnerships to encourage industry growth 
and competitiveness and to improve worker training, retention, and advancement.” We were proud to 
support the bill once we were able to ensure that it made appropriate connections to CTE (e.g., the bill 
includes the definitions for CTE and “career guidance and academic counseling” that are found in 
Perkins and CTE is embedded in the objectives and activities that the grants awarded can support). 
 
Perkins: In July, we continued our efforts to apply pressure to the Senate to act swiftly on 
reauthorization of Perkins. We sent an email to the Executive Directors of each of the Career Technical 
Student Organizations (CTSOs) urging them to include a message in support of reauthorization and a 
strong federal investment in Perkins as they communicate with congressional staff about the winners 
of their respective competitions that occur over the summer. In addition, we provided a federal policy 
update to a group of former CTSO officers who have shown interest in advocating for Perkins. We are 
also meeting with national partners to devise a strategy to advance Perkins – we had a successful 
meeting with National Governors Association at the end of July and will be meeting with the School 
Superintendents Association (AASA) and other groups in August. With each group, we have reinforced 
the messages that (1) many states are in a holding pattern until a new law is passed, which would 
allow stakeholders to be engaged in developing a new plan that incorporates innovative ideas and 
best practices into their plans and (2) reauthorization sends a strong signal to appropriators who may 
not see cuts to CTE as significant since reauthorization is long overdue. 
 
We have also requested meetings with staff for every member of the Senate Health, Education, Labor 
and Pensions (HELP) Committee. During these meetings, we will cover our Perkins Priorities and 
answer staff questions about CTE. Our goal is to educate and build relationships with as many staff as 
possible to facilitate their understanding of Perkins and to connect them to the State Directors. Then, 
if and when Perkins moves in the Senate, HELP staffers will be able to rely upon Advance CTE and the 
State CTE Directors for guidance and messaging.  

Strategic Priority: Build on our existing strong public policy leadership by developing and 
disseminating legislation and public policy that impacts education, economic and workforce 

development in support of expanded access to and quality of CTE.

Strategic Priority: Lead a cross-organizational and cross-state effort to successfully build 
awareness, advocacy and accomplishment of the Putting Learner Success First: A Shared 

Vision for the Future of CTE. 

52

http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13420
https://careertech.org/vision-resources
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lW-yNoZVyCA
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ojKHTMNAUADxptVYkK14lmthlfGwIStgyL1pn9k742f7B43KssOq771n-OysqFxi9g-F5-I7NZVkLFdvA1qcgPCESUnfACDf8-CN_AR9dVo2MScyi68OGIVO84qfamtLv5k8KFo9o9w6UZgeGluaeGblrzGD-f9eMPkxdDqGMRcKfNRclIB9dyqGOGAODD6fiZFUuSVIyII9LGhJjG9uNYMK0bmsXeerjJcxUxWAFJjqhOcJJ0UE4HURU9a4An4OAiOee9ovrwporLabF2o5kdFD3trZSNScgUXEJSdyGtUWINBGTZcenFLxHwyeSnB5MRKL0I884QXhUaccc4oloA==&c=gNTktroGDUGOqkz_lWnSO3FfHKSdkPR0fUvCGAFqHVKr6J5T680jhg==&ch=_V2LrXb9VVouXki96X1cwYs98oBh6CA654H70DEqtqfIQppOLR0kww==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ojKHTMNAUADxptVYkK14lmthlfGwIStgyL1pn9k742f7B43KssOq771n-OysqFxi9g-F5-I7NZVkLFdvA1qcgPCESUnfACDf8-CN_AR9dVo2MScyi68OGIVO84qfamtLv5k8KFo9o9w6UZgeGluaeGblrzGD-f9eMPkxdDqGMRcKfNRclIB9dyqGOGAODD6fiZFUuSVIyII9LGhJjG9uNYMK0bmsXeerjJcxUxWAFJjqhOcJJ0UE4HURU9a4An4OAiOee9ovrwporLabF2o5kdFD3trZSNScgUXEJSdyGtUWINBGTZcenFLxHwyeSnB5MRKL0I884QXhUaccc4oloA==&c=gNTktroGDUGOqkz_lWnSO3FfHKSdkPR0fUvCGAFqHVKr6J5T680jhg==&ch=_V2LrXb9VVouXki96X1cwYs98oBh6CA654H70DEqtqfIQppOLR0kww==


  7

 
Budget / Appropriations:  Advance CTE asked its members and the readership of its Legislative 
Updates newsletter what a 15 percent cut to the Perkins Basic State Grant (as proposed in the 
President’s Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18) Budget) would mean for them. Career Technical Education (CTE) 
advocates, students and educators from across the country wrote to us to let us know how 
devastating these cuts would be to programs across the country and we released this blog post that 
captured their perspectives on July 10. We sent this blog out to congressional staff and featured it in 
the letter we sent in partnership with ACTE to House Labor, Health and Human Services, Education 
and Related Agencies (Labor-HHS-Ed) Appropriations Subcommittee prior to their July 13 markup of 
the FY18 Labor-HHS-Ed appropriations bill. The bill passed out of the subcommittee along party lines 
9-6 and was marked up and approved by the full House Appropriations Committee on Wednesday, 
July 19. This bill includes level-funding for CTE (and maintains that $1,117,598,000 be allocated to the 
Perkins Basic State Grants and $7,421,000 be allocated for National Programs – the same as FY17), but 
has not yet been scheduled for a vote before the full House of Representatives. We do not know if it 
will be considered when the House returns from recess on September 5. 
 
On July 19, the House Budget Committee marked up and approved its FY18 Budget Resolution (which 
provides the top-line spending number for all 12 appropriations bills).The blueprint notes that, 
“Strengthening career and technical education, higher education, and workforce development 
programs, by increasing choice, access, and affordability, will ensure that our workers have the skills 
necessary to compete in a growing and changing economy” (p. 26). The House Budget Committee’s 
report on the resolution similarly highlights CTE (see page 121 here). At this time, we do not know if 
the budget resolution will be voted on by the full House of Representatives when they return from 
recess.  
 
The Senate is not scheduled to go on recess until August 11, but it is unlikely that the Labor-HHS-Ed 
Appropriations Subcommittee will mark up its FY18 appropriations bill before then. The Senate began 
preliminary work on the FY18 Appropriations process on July 20, when the Senate Appropriations 
Committee released its guidance for FY18 allocations for the 12 appropriations bills. While the 
allocation for Labor-HHS-Education is $8 billion more than the amount in the House Bill, the guidance 
notes, “This increase is necessary to offset a significant reduction in available savings from mandatory 
programs.” While we have advocated for an increased investment in Perkins, the message we have 
received from our meetings with congressional staff is that “level-funding is the new increase,” so we 
do not anticipate that an increased investment is likely in the current fiscal environment despite our 
continued advocacy and the popularity of CTE among both Republican and Democrats.  
 
Congressional Offices Engaged in July 2017:  

 Meeting with Courtney Webb, Rep. Herrera Beutler (R-WA)  
 Meeting with Will Strother, Rep. Chuck Fleischmann (R-TN) 

 
COMMUNICATIONS REPORT 
 
Consistent with years past, website traffic is down significantly in the summer months. Staff predicts it 
will increase in August/September as it has in previous years. Additionally, website traffic is high on 
pages housing major releases and projects such as the Advance CTE Fall Meeting, Value and Promise 
of CTE and Career Readiness and the Every Student Succeeds Act, in line with marketing efforts.  

 
 

53

http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13443
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ojKHTMNAUADxptVYkK14lmthlfGwIStgyL1pn9k742f7B43KssOq716FssU5etlL0YLiYXMSSTey3XPd6FYxkUPtLIU4u239mCNBSXV6JM_tK27Cj_x31yA-gbETLMB-2Mvm_bwmoXFvSC3Qz0ybEdCMrKTl06nv3SGpZoc-HsL79nvr8Gqcn64y0v8-kGx_g1ZR_g20XyOpBhOlTZ6CzWgkncySj4lKQO99Aiq6cTTiUfhJYdDP3ka1uqTaCaP4PsTSeHssMf8=&c=gNTktroGDUGOqkz_lWnSO3FfHKSdkPR0fUvCGAFqHVKr6J5T680jhg==&ch=_V2LrXb9VVouXki96X1cwYs98oBh6CA654H70DEqtqfIQppOLR0kww==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ojKHTMNAUADxptVYkK14lmthlfGwIStgyL1pn9k742f7B43KssOq771n-OysqFxiPZV-ONnlYKiNPPvNlrLVJ0mmkRUCUPyMnnJcnKUmzB9WNfFApwJKkvsXWXEGFD407QZiY9VyEQUjv37BNMZq5QCrcj1SWvDlOKiEB0mc0YdFyNL-OeW1jsxmtMBnsGzyBQtSJEoonLo=&c=gNTktroGDUGOqkz_lWnSO3FfHKSdkPR0fUvCGAFqHVKr6J5T680jhg==&ch=_V2LrXb9VVouXki96X1cwYs98oBh6CA654H70DEqtqfIQppOLR0kww==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ojKHTMNAUADxptVYkK14lmthlfGwIStgyL1pn9k742f7B43KssOq771n-OysqFxis4PN39I_YgYK4Pg5tymEbJhc3178yzQ1BMdfD59g_eVJW4AK1TWTRJGLSYtQI0LIVERHWDZ5CxuiCw9vzmGAK9q2ETVuPnp2qEBcHl75tp-enqHaSgRyokpIuEnci52q6-JZkpPgKX0Nu47-pGWUE0RX97rqUZDwPnEr1jtsaXCR-5qgtZjbcw==&c=gNTktroGDUGOqkz_lWnSO3FfHKSdkPR0fUvCGAFqHVKr6J5T680jhg==&ch=_V2LrXb9VVouXki96X1cwYs98oBh6CA654H70DEqtqfIQppOLR0kww==
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ojKHTMNAUADxptVYkK14lmthlfGwIStgyL1pn9k742f7B43KssOq771n-OysqFxi-Hk-inpZUM3mnPtORdCy3Z5G4ut_Iz5rp5nOKEHJOw2s1t1emtTcHEALnGUXw72CWDvuGI36Y_ltwy9HrphlGSCsxYSy0BWiR8hrHpLHdOKw1d8U8CmRLjcuDDwhalF4pqxYXE6ZpDQ56xztAH42zpuDQyeTafsasLStxSBgo5oFVG2TSeCibrNLfwkzJBNizn2rB2L2oKezUzHphqGqs_e2oUrcHKEvKPn9DavSuWfDX5r4pbFeGw==&c=gNTktroGDUGOqkz_lWnSO3FfHKSdkPR0fUvCGAFqHVKr6J5T680jhg==&ch=_V2LrXb9VVouXki96X1cwYs98oBh6CA654H70DEqtqfIQppOLR0kww==


 
 

8

 

Major Organizational 
Releases/Initiatives  
 Mapping Career 

Readiness (1304)  
 Resource Center 

(1059) 
 Fall Meeting (417) 

Acquisition of site 
users 

 Organic search 
(49%) 

 Direct (29%) 
 Referral (21%) 

 

 

13 Blog Posts 
Published  
Most visited blogs:  

 What a 15 
Percent Cut to 
Perkins Really 
Means 

 How Career 
Readiness Fared 
in the First ESSA 
State Plans 

 States Pave Way 
for More Flexible, 
Integrated 
Pathways to 
Graduation 

51513 48505
43086 36436 37753

19538 17681
, 38115 , 36199 33089 27766 28836

14853
, 13427

192713
176042

149192
132957

118286

60962 47850

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17 Jul‐17

Website Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

1652 1733
1676

1349
1776

1567 1448
1432 1420

1390
1106

1434
1247 1169

2396 2631 2608

2027

2587
2383

1985

0

1000

2000

3000

Jan‐17 Feb‐17 Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17 Jul‐17

Learning that Works Blog Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

54

https://careertech.org/resource/mapping-career-readiness-essa
https://careertech.org/resource-center
https://careertech.org/2017-advance-cte-fall-meeting
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13443
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13430
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13470


 
 

9

 

 
 
Facebook: +25 
 
Twitter: +264 
 
 

 
Media 
Advance CTE was featured in the media this month including:  

 This Week's ESSA News, The 74 

 Reframing How We Talk About Career and Technical Education, Huffington Post 

 Forget Blue Collar, it's About New Collar, CNN  

 Balancing College and Career Readiness, AEI  

 Does Your State Have a Good Plan to Ensure Students are Career-ready?, Education Week 

 Planning for Success(ion), Motor Magazine   

 Ads Spell out What Career and Technical Education Really Is – and Who It’s For, Chronicle of 
Higher Education  

Strategies for Attracting Students to High-Quality CTE  
Staff has continued to develop resources for this initiative, with four additional tools launched 
in July. 

 Achieving Educational Equity and Justice in Career Academies: Challenges and 
Promising Strategies 

 Idaho: CTE Digital & Idaho Digital Learning Academy 

 STEM: Classroom to Career: Opportunities to Close the Gap 

 Equity Measures in State Outcomes-Based Funding: Incentives for Public Colleges to 
Support Low-Income and Underprepared Students 

Additionally, states have continued their pilot activities.  
 
Staff is continuing to work with the four states selected for technical assistance through 
monthly technical assistance calls, and bi-monthly cross-state calls.   

2911

2227

3032

2249

3249

2266

3393

2283

3507

2281

3683

2292

3827

2322

4091

2347

0 2000 4000 6000

Total Twitter Followers

Total Facebook Likes

Social Media 

Jul‐17

Jun‐17

May‐17

Apr‐17

Mar‐17

Feb‐17

Jan‐17

Dec‐16

55

https://www.the74million.org/article/this-weeks-essa-news-massachusetts-evaluation-career-readiness
http://www.huffingtonpost.com/entry/reframing-how-we-talk-about-career-and-technical-education_us_596397c1e4b0cf3c8e8d5a66
http://www.cnn.com/2017/07/10/opinions/advocating-cte-option-opinion-taylor/
https://www.aei.org/publication/balancing-college-and-career-readiness/
http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/high_school_and_beyond/2017/07/does_your_state_have_a_good_plan_to_ensure_students_are_career-ready.html
http://digital.motormagazine.com/?issueID=114&pageID=32
http://www.chronicle.com/article/Ads-Spell-Out-What-Career-and/240665
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ucLraROJ8mRl1lCQM1glyM0m5FvrNJmjFnabP53cInehxhCT49OcmWgI7B_F4g8DiC23sw-jyy9Xy4aTUHWH_1YV6q7h9nZLtc2s-GHVpTBAXO0lnLddGuKzXH5dK0sglx1qdkvfM7OKCDfd2Rph4pOtDRg5J41QwIOPRuq6z0MAV1TMWTAlGQf6m90gxYIpFE4iTQcJOPyc-C7OMQNt_rD5gwrr1TqQzqLM1lGUIDHMYWSy0PkMlVXdCsJxYHHN&c=&ch=
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ucLraROJ8mRl1lCQM1glyM0m5FvrNJmjFnabP53cInehxhCT49OcmWgI7B_F4g8DGE9SIk_0xRxXdU98XvxFvgalFyN8CCWm5QPAy2m66tHGQ94LP4iYzamgAN6d3f-4_-pPG811MCfINJmZMjG48AjAoNp_KSyK6WDMO6czbvXVBl5TcwRjC9rFnIFHqL3f8uAoPx_u9sEacX0LIrFIlTqcSWGQ6DW6&c=&ch=
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ucLraROJ8mRl1lCQM1glyM0m5FvrNJmjFnabP53cInehxhCT49OcmWgI7B_F4g8Dc9brAChesRQg2xmb5iOvcOqA0m5BqRRiNByLt_JmVgZ5bv4PmF-5nsSMcDDmg9dS3vYMLeD0mg97Dtvc-NPsVcdEnLPI7OZAYb1zRUP-IJVhmUpGpfCCND70yLeSQ0bSpGtxFtow71D7Zd0P6XR7u37WJ8R-mLmA&c=&ch=
http://r20.rs6.net/tn.jsp?f=001ucLraROJ8mRl1lCQM1glyM0m5FvrNJmjFnabP53cInehxhCT49OcmWgI7B_F4g8D6n3uhhCk62BV9tI2iMXxEO7MBGjQ3uqKRmZUVWab2MEAf1nisAhtRGcsi9Cj5zbjvtWqtRw8ZiFFhhP9ohtjSBuc-KJzHitB4dXc_G4wn87XpQJDJXl-kCyFWd4TXqwZTVc1bveAJloYai3sN2wS6zDJ3asw-OALVWgPXr0CyBNIcw9HV-KR3g==&c=&ch=


  10 

 
Below is a list of Advance CTE’s staff most impactful or otherwise notable engagement activities from 
last month 

PRESENTATIONS  Federal Policy Update provided to advocacy group for former CTSO officers 
 Presentation to NC CTE administrators (Greensboro, NC) 
 Opening general session panelist, NC State CTE conference (Greensboro, 

NC) 
 General session speaker – Pennsylvania CTE Administrators Association 

(State College, PA) 
 Keynote presentation at Tennessee's CTE Institute (Nashville, TN) 
 Workshop on communications research at Tennessee’s CTE Institute 

EVENTS 
ATTENDED 

  

 Attended “Afterschool and Workforce: Bridging Systems to Serve Older 
Youth Discussion Group”, Hosted by American Youth Policy Forum (AYPF), 
Washington, DC 

 Partner meeting of Apprenticeship Forward (DC) 
 PostSec Data Collaborative Monthly Meeting by phone  
 PostSec Data Collaborative Federal Linkages Subcommittee Meeting 
 Committee for Education Funding Event: “Education Matters: Investing in 

America's Future” 
 Two Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Meetings  
 Education Pioneers & Education Reform Now! Education Advocacy Event  
 Two Campaign to Invest in America's Workforce Meetings  
 Manufacturing 4.0 Event (DC) 
 Manufacturing Skills Standards Board Meeting (VA) 
 New Skills for Youth project team meeting (DC) 
 NCC-CTSO Quarterly Meeting (Reston, VA) 
 NGA Work-Based Learning Roundtable (DC)  
 Senate CTE Caucus Briefing on “Supporting Successful Reentry through 

CTE” 
 Young Education Professionals of D.C. Education Jobs Event 
 Women in Government Relations’ Education Task Force Quarterly Meeting  

OTHER 
PARTNERS 
ENGAGED 

 

 Worked with AIR Center on Great Teachers and Leaders to plan workshops 
and working groups related to our December 2016 State of CTE report on 
industry experts 

 ACTE 
 AIR 
 Continued working on the next State of CTE report with the American 

School Counselors Association, focused on career development and 
advisement 

 Asia Society 
 Credentials Engine 
 DoDEA        
 EDC 
 Harris School Solutions  
 MDRC 

Strategic Priority: Expand awareness of, support for, and access to high-quality CTE by leading, 
building and maintaining strategic partnerships. 

56



 
 

11

 Lunch with the National Governors Association’s Government Relations 
Team  

 National Technical Honor Society 
 WGBH 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

57



 

 Upcoming Advance CTE and Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings  
Advance CTE Board Meetings 

 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 9:00 a.m. – Noon ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 
The Center to Advance CTE Board Meetings 

 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 3:30 – 5:00 p.m. ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 
Joint Board Meeting  

 Fall Meeting Board Meeting – October 16, 2017 at 12:30 – 3:30 p.m. ET at BWI Marriott Hotel 
 
Looking ahead: (all time listed are eastern time zone)  

January 30, 2018 – Conference call to approve the audit and 990s 
 Advance CTE Board from 2:00 – 2:30 p.m. ET 
 Joint meeting of both Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Boards from 2:30 – 

3:00 p.m. ET 
 The Center to Advance CTE Board from 3:00 – 3:30 p.m.) 

 February 25 – 27, 2018 – Strategic Planning Retreat (in person, BWI Marriott) 
 April 3, 2018 – In person meeting on Tuesday, April 3 in conjunction with Spring meeting  
 June 20, 2018 – Conference call to approve the FY19 budgets (Advance CTE 2:00 – 3:00 p.m.; 
Center to Advance CTE 4:00 – 5:00 p.m.)  
 
State CTE Director Changes  
Transitions 

 In July, Advance CTE received the following notices regarding State Director transitions:  
o North Carolina: Jo Anne Honeycutt will leave her post as State Director on September 

15. An interim has not yet been named.   
o Thank you, Jo Anne, for your leadership, energy and commitment to leading our 

organization through many major milestones – a new brand, name, and vision – to 
name a few! You will be missed! Stepping back into the position of Past President will 
be Rod Duckworth, State CTE Director in Florida.  

 Mentor pairing updates: This summer, we have paired several new State Directors with 
veteran leaders. Here’s a quick snapshot of the pairings we’ve made over the past three 
months:  

New State Director Mentor 
Marci Johnson (Illinois) Guy Jackson (Wyoming) 
Cathie Raymond (Arizona) Thalea Longhurst (Utah) 

Chad Maclin (DC) Lynne Gilli (Maryland) 
Chris Deaton (Indiana) Rod Duckworth (Florida) 
Colleen McCabe (Wisconsin) Jeralyn Jargon (Minnesota) 

 
 Check out the blog posts for the following new State Directors: Indiana and DC.  

Advance CTE / Center to Advance CTE 
Board of Directors’ Update 

August 2017 

QUICK UPDATES 
 

58

http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13544
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13561


  2

 Additionally, the following states remain without permanent leadership: Alabama, New York, 
Oregon, South Carolina and Texas. 

 

 
Finance Update:  We are two months (17%) into our new fiscal year and are busily working to close 
out the last fiscal year with the accountant. The accountant has reconciled the finances through the 
end of July. Overall, we are in a very solid fiscal position. State dues have been coming in as planned, 
as are fall meeting registrations and grants/contracts. The annual audit has been scheduled to take 
place in November.  
  

Advance CTE Budget Snapshot  Center to Advance CTE Budget  Snapshot 
 Received 54.33% of budgeted income  Received 74.25% of budgeted income 
 Expended 13.94% of budgeted expenses  Expended 6.17% of budgeted expenses 

 
 
Fundraising  
Advance CTE is currently pursuing a variety of federal, corporate and foundation contacts to discuss 
potential grants and contracts. Below is a chart explaining this month’s engagement with various 
development opportunities.   
 
 

Grant/Proposal/ 
Contract 

Organization 
/Partner Engagement  in Past Month Status 

Siemens 
Foundation 

 

In late July, we submitted a proposal to Siemens for a 
two-year grant proposal, which will continue to focus on 
providing technical assistance to states but also build a 
set of tools and trainings targeted at activating and 
recruiting champions within the guidance and career 
development community. We are now in the process of 
refining the proposal. Their Board will meet in the fall, 
which is when they approve new grants.   

Ongoing & 
Proposal 
Development
 

New Skills for 
Youth 

JP Morgan 
Chase; CCSSO 

A fuller update is below about recent and upcoming 
initiatives and deliverables supported by the NSFY grant.  

Ongoing 

Postsecondary 
program quality 

Joyce 
Foundation 

We have been engaged in discussions with Joyce since 
last fall and are now in the early stages of putting 
together a proposal to use our upcoming program 
approval benchmark tool in a small number of states to 
advance quality CTE programs at the postsecondary 
level. The proposal would be due in early Fall, approved 
in December and begin in January 2018.  

Proposal 
Development

IDIQ – 
Connecting 
Secondary CTE & 
Apprenticeships 

OCTAE 

We are continuing to provide support for the final set of 
deliverables, including a resource guide on connecting 
CTE and apprenticeships for state and local leaders, 
which will be released by September 2017. 

Ongoing 

Strategic Priority: Ensure strong organizational governance and fiscal security for both Advance 
CTE and The Center to Advance CTE 

59



  3

Employer 
Engagement in 
STEM 

NSF 

We are considering submitting a proposal to the 
National Science Foundation for a contract to support 
and engage employers around our nationally tested 
messages and to additional tools to help strengthen 
their involvement and support of CTE and STEM.  The 
proposal would be due in early September, which is a 
challenge given capacity. We may submit a scaled-down 
proposal – for a smaller pool of funds – in the coming 
months to NSFY 

Ongoing 

Misc.  

In August, we had meetings with Annie E. Casey 
Foundation and Bloomberg, both of which were 
exploratory and set to lay groundwork for future 
opportunities.  

Preliminary  

 

 
Membership Update  
Advance CTE received 3 new memberships – all Associate, Non-state. 
 
In August, staff also closed the dues renewal period and cancelled all non-paying members or those 
who indicated they wished to cancel. Those numbers are:  

 9 Associate, State members 
 10 Associate, Non-state members 
 1 Organizational member 
 TOTAL: 20 cancellations 

 
During the last week of August, staff began the first official audit of membership, which is part of the 
newly installed control processes to ensure fidelity of our membership database and email listservs. 
The results of the audit will be shared during the September report.  
 
Total membership as of August 31, 2017: 406 individuals 

 State Membership*: 53 states (representing 53 State Directors and 159 state members)  
 Associate, State: 9 
 Associate, Non-state: 85 
 Organizational: 33 organizations (representing 100 individuals) 

*Note: The state membership category is now a disaggregated count of the State Directors and state 
members.  
 
Meetings/Events  
 

Event Name Date 
Total 

Participants

Total 
Participating 

State Directors 

% of Registration 
Goal 

2017 Fall Meeting October 16-18 113 27 67% 

 
Early Bird registration for the 2017 Fall Meeting ended in mid-August. By that time, we had reached 
more than 60% of our registration goal. Staff attribute this to a number of factors, including an early 

Strategic Priority: Provide, encourage and support professional learning to expand the skills, 
content knowledge and leadership of state CTE leaders. 

60



  4

registration launch, a full agenda being posted much earlier than normal, and a balanced variety of 
topics and issues being addressed.  
 
Meeting sponsorship launched on August 2, and we have secured 43% of our target ($13,500). 
Sponsorship closes on September 15, and staff are making every effort to meet the target by that 
deadline. 
 
Member Resources and Supports  
 
New Skills for Youth Update:  
New Skills for Youth: The NSFY team continues to work with Phase Two states on refining their 
outcomes goals and designing an effective progress monitoring system. The project team has recently 
begun working on the NSFY Fall Convening, taking place in Cincinnati, Ohio November 1-3, 2017.  
 
State of CTE: Career Development and Advisement: Staff recently launched three surveys for the 
upcoming State of CTE report. One survey will be administered to State CTE Directors and the other 
will be administered to a sampling of the American School Counselor Association’s (ASCA’s) 33,000 
members. Additionally a version of the State CTE Director survey will be sent to state guidance 
directors. Staff will analyze the survey results throughout September, and a preview of the survey 
conclusions will be presented at the Advance CTE Fall Meeting. The report will be released in early 
February 2018.  
 
Rural briefs: Earlier this month Advance CTE released the first brief in the CTE on the Frontier series. That 
brief, focused on catalyzing local efforts to improve program quality in rural communities, features 
strategies from Nebraska, South Dakota, Idaho and Mississippi. The second brief in the series is 
scheduled to be released at the end of September and will profile strategies to connect rural learners 
to the world of work.  
 
Labor Market Information guide: Staff began drafting a guide for the dissemination of labor market 
information to key stakeholders. The guide will include prompts to help states think through their 
dissemination strategies, as well as state case studies for Kentucky, Nevada and Washington. The 
guide will be released in mid-November. 
 
Resource Center: The Resource 
Center had its best month on 
record in August with more than 
10,000 page views, fueled in 
part by sustained traffic to new 
Advance CTE resources. Recent 
Advance CTE publications 
include The Value and Promise of 
CTE (670 hits), CTE on the 
Frontier (570 hits), Opportunities 
for Connecting Secondary CTE 
and Apprenticeships (310 hits) 
and Mapping Career Readiness in 
State ESSA Plans (170 hits). The 
most visited topic page for 
August was Career Advisement.  

 

61

https://careertech.org/resource/cte-frontier-program-quality


  5

State Policy Update:  
Program Approval Policy Benchmark Tool: After updates to the program approval policy tool were 
made, staff sent the draft for review to eight Advance CTE members and six organizational partners, 
including one representative from a school district. Staff incorporated the valuable feedback from 
these reviews and drafted a members-only facilitation guide to use with the rubric. Currently the tool 
is being tested by two volunteer state leaders before it is finalized. The will be released on October 3, 
along with a webinar explaining how the tool works.  

CTE Virtual Institute: Development of the CTE Virtual Institute is 
underway, with a schedule launch date of October 23 (immediately 
following Advance CTE’s fall meeting). The CTE Virtual Institute is a 7-
module web-based crash course on CTE that is designed to educate 
new audiences on the Putting Learner Success Vision and the core 
components of a high-quality CTE system. In August, staff recorded 
short videos that will guide participants through the course and 
make connections across the course material. Additionally, Advance 
CTE developed a new graphic to help promote the CTE Virtual 
Institute. 
 
Industry Expert Working Groups: The first working group kickoff happened in late July with a 
productive call on exploring innovative roles for industry experts. This group includes representatives 
from California, Hawai’i, Kentucky, Nebraska, Ohio, New Jersey, ACTE, Project Lead the Way and the US 
Chamber of Commerce Foundation. Further calls will happen monthly for five months, and 
participants will identify concrete strategies and potential next steps for action. The group will 
conclude with a written report from the Center on Great Teachers and Leaders. 
 
The second group, focusing on strategies within secondary and postsecondary relationships, had its 
kick-off session on August 29. Representatives from Hawai’i, Idaho, Iowa, Minnesota, North Carolina, 
Oregon, Tennessee, ACTE, Jobs for the Future and the National Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment 
Partnerships (NACEP) joined the conversation.  
 

  
Over the summer, we released a blog series, highlighting the opportunities and initiatives aligned 
with each principle.  
 
More importantly, as an organization, we have embedded Putting Learner Success First in all of our 
organizational priorities, strategies and initiatives.  While we continue to present at state and national 
conferences on Putting Learner Success First, share our resources, including the video released in May, 
and engage our partners, the reach and impact of the shared vision is most evident in the success and 
reach of our aligned research, communications and member supports.  
 
For example, in August, Advance CTE convened a Career Cluster Task Force, which is charged with 
establishing recommendations and action steps around the “next generation” of the National Career 
Clusters® Framework.  Over a two-day meeting in Baltimore, Maryland, a diverse group of stakeholders 
– including State CTE Directors, researchers, practitioners and representatives from national advocacy 
organizations – unpacked the current value and utility of the current Framework and identified 

Strategic Priority: Lead a cross-organizational and cross-state effort to successfully build 
awareness, advocacy and accomplishment of the Putting Learner Success First: A Shared 

Vision for the Future of CTE. 

62

http://blog.careertech.org/?tag=putting-learner-success-first
https://careertech.org/vision-resources
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=lW-yNoZVyCA


  6

opportunities for the future. Underpinning this discussion was Putting Learner Success First, and 
Advance CTE’s overall vision for the future of CTE. 
 
The Task Force, which is being led by Dr. Danielle Mezera, will be convened virtually 2-3 more times 
before the recommendations are finalized in January 2018, to inform the Board of Directors’ strategic 
planning in February 2018. 
  
 

 
Federal Advocacy Plan:     
With the U.S. House of Representatives and the Senate in recess for most of August, the pace of 
legislative action has slowed down. As we gear up for Congress to come back in early September, 
Advance CTE has focused on building awareness and support for reauthorization of the Carl D. Perkins 
Career and Technical Education Act of 2006 (Perkins) and the federal investment in Perkins Basic State 
Grants. In addition, we’ve started to hone in on the Federal Policy and Advocacy Strategy and 
determine how to further support its implementation. For Professional Development, we’ve begun 
the early analysis of the Perkins Implementation Survey, which was completed by all 50 states, the 
District of Columbia and Guam. The results will be shared in detail at the Fall Meeting, with member 
resources to follow. For Promotion, we’ve designed a short newsletter with the top things to know in 
CTE to send on a monthly basis to all of the House and Senate education staffers. In coordination with 
the Association for Career and Technical Education (ACTE), we will develop content each month that 
highlights the latest CTE resources, news articles and fun facts about CTE. Our goal is to provide timely 
and useful information that will raise awareness about CTE and continue to position Advance CTE as a 
go-to organization for Hill Staff.  
 
Perkins:  
We continued our efforts to apply pressure to the Senate to act swiftly on reauthorization of Perkins 
and met with seven staffers for members of the Senate Health, Education, Labor and Pensions (HELP) 
Committee. During these meetings, we’ve provided resources and information on CTE and Perkins 
and encouraged movement on Perkins reauthorization. Staff have relayed similar messages about 
how disagreements around secretarial authority are holding up the reauthorization process. 
Republican offices emphasize that they want to maintain the provisions related to secretarial 
prohibitions found in the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) and Democratic offices emphasize that 
those prohibitions do not provide enough accountability. While we have reminded staff that Advance 
CTE hasn’t taken a position on the issue and does not plan to enter this political debate, some offices 
have encouraged us to weigh in on secretarial authority to get the process moving. We are hopeful 
that pressure from the House and from other education groups will push reauthorization forward. On 
August 28, Representatives Krishnamoorthi (D-IL) and Thompson (R-PA) also held a press conference 
at the Central Pennsylvania Institute of Science and Technology to urge the Senate and Whitehouse to 
take up reauthorization. In addition, we plan to host a meeting in September with the core education 
groups in D.C. with an interest in Perkins to strategize about how we can work together to encourage 
the Senate to take up reauthorization.  
 
Budget / Appropriations:   
In preparation for Congress to continue their work on the Fiscal Year 2018 (FY18) Budget and 
Appropriations processes in early September, Advance CTE partnered with the Campaign to Invest in 
America’s Workforce (CIAW) to meet with members of the Senate Appropriations Committee to 

Strategic Priority: Build on our existing strong public policy leadership by developing and 
disseminating legislation and public policy that impacts education, economic and workforce 

development in support of expanded access to and quality of CTE.

63

http://www.centredaily.com/news/local/article169900312.html


  7

advocate for a strong federal investment in Perkins. In addition, Advance CTE provided input on and 
signed on to this CIAW letter to Senate appropriators about the importance of this investment and 
other key education and workforce development programs. To reinforce this message, we worked 
with ACTE to send a separate letter to Senate appropriators about the importance of the federal 
investment in CTE. We anticipate that the Senate Labor, Health and Human Services and Education 
Appropriations Subcommittee will mark up a spending bill the first week of September.  
 
The House is also likely to consider appropriations legislation during their first week back in session. 
They are scheduled to vote on H.R. 3354, an eight bill omnibus appropriations bill the week 
of September 4 (which includes level-funding for the FY18 allocation for Perkins Basic State Grants and 
National Programs). Many amendments to the bill were submitted and the House Rules Committee 
required these amendments to be “budget authority and outlay neutral,” meaning that any proposed 
increase in a program’s allocation must be offset by a decrease elsewhere in the same bill. Importantly, 
two amendments to add funds to the Perkins Basic State Grants were submitted (but we were not 
involved in drafting them or contacted by these offices about them):  

1) An amendment from Rep. Lewis (R-MN) would add $70 million to the state grants and deducts 
that amount from "For carrying out, to the extent not otherwise provided, titles III, IV, V, VI, and 
VII of the HEA, and section 117 of the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 
2006, $2,038,126,000)." 

2) An amendment from Rep. Keating (D-MA) would add $10 million to the state grants and 
deducts that amount from the expenditures for the Office of the Secretary General 
Departmental Management at the Department of Health and Human Services.  

We do not yet know if either of these amendments will proceed beyond the House Rules Committee. 
Given that the offsets for these increases to the Perkins Basic State Grants are controversial, would not 
likely yield much public support and may not be considered when the bill goes before the House, we 
have decided to stay silent about them in the time leading up to the bill’s consideration. A number of 
other advocacy groups have also remained silent on a number of amendments that would provide 
increases to the programs they care about at the expense of others.   
 
Congressional Offices Engaged in August 2017:  

 Meeting with Kerry McKittrick, Rep. Langevin (D-RI) and Katie Brown, Rep. Glenn Thompson (R-
PA)  

 Meeting with John Don, Sen. Scott (R-SC) 
 Meeting with Brittany Weaver, Sen. Hassan (D-NH) 
 Meeting with Brian Moulton, Sen. Baldwin (D-WI)  
 Meeting with Karen McCarthy, Sen. Murkowski (R-AK)  
 Meeting with Nancy Martinez, Sen. Young (R-IN)  
 Meeting with Victoria Lee, Sen. Moran (R-KS)  
 Meeting with Pamela Davidson, Sen. Cassidy (R-LA) 
 Meeting with Jesse Mahan, Sen. Lankford (R-OK) 
 Meeting with Gohar Sedighi, Sen. Franken (D-MN) 
 Email communication with Brent Palmer, Sen. Feinstein (D-CA)  

 
  

64

http://www.americasworkforce.org/latest-action-list/2017/8/7senate-labor-health-and-human-services-education-and-related-agencies-subcommittee-education-and-related-agencies-subcommittee
https://rules.house.gov/bill/115/hr-3354
https://rules.house.gov/news/announcement/amendment-process-announcement-hr-3354
http://amendments-rules.house.gov/amendments/LEWIMN_014_xml82417180139139.pdf
http://amendments-rules.house.gov/amendments/KEATIN_02882517091909199.pdf


  8

COMMUNICATIONS REPORT 
 

 

Major Organizational 
Releases/Initiatives  

 Resource Center 
(1925) 

 Value and 
Promise of CTE 
(675)  

 CTE on the 
Frontier (589)   

Acquisition of site 
users 

 Organic search 
(45%) 

 Direct (38%) 
 Referral (16%) 

 

 

14 Blog Posts 
Published  
Most visited blogs:  

 New Resources 
to Help You Sell 
CTE 

 How to Sell CTE 
to Parents & 
Students, States 
Share Lessons 
Learned 

 Welcome to 
Chad Maclin! 

36436 37753

19538 17681

45238
27766 28836

14853
, 13427 , 24392

132957
118286

60962
47850

160347

0

20000

40000

60000

80000

100000

120000

140000

160000

180000

Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17 Jul‐17 Aug‐17

Website Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

1676
1349

1776
1567 1448 1485

1390 1106
1434

1247 1169 1254

2608
2027

2587
2383

1985 2148

0

1000

2000

3000

Mar‐17 Apr‐17 May‐17 Jun‐17 Jul‐17 Aug‐17

Learning that Works Blog Metrics

Sessions Users Pageviews

65

https://careertech.org/resource-center
https://careertech.org/resource/value-and-promise-of-cte-results-from-a-national-survey
https://careertech.org/resource/cte-frontier-program-quality
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13527
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13566
http://blog.careertech.org/?p=13561


  9

 

 
 
Facebook: +11 
 
Twitter: +192 
 
 

 
 
Media 
Advance CTE was featured in the media this month including:  

 Policymakers Begin Looking at College Prep Alternatives for Education, The Heartland 
Institute  

 States Want More Tech and Career Training, But Lack Teachers, Seattle Times (repeat 
article from article earlier this year) 

 Some States Succeed in Improving Rural CTE, Cabinet Report  

 Career and Technical Education Faces Challenges in Rural America, Education Week  

Strategies for Attracting Students to High-Quality CTE  
Staff is continuing to work with the four states selected for technical assistance through 
monthly technical assistance calls, and bi-monthly cross-state calls.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3507

2281

3683

2292

3827

2322

4091

2347

4283

2358

0 2000 4000 6000

Total Twitter Followers

Total Facebook Likes

Social Media 

Aug‐17

Jul‐17

Jun‐17

May‐17

Apr‐17

66

https://www.heartland.org/publications-resources/publications/research--commentary-policymakers-begin-looking-at-college-prep-alternatives-for-education
http://www.seattletimes.com/nwshowcase/advance-course/states-want-more-tech-and-career-training-but-lack-teachers/
https://www.cabinetreport.com/curriculum-instruction/some-states-succeed-in-improving-rural-cte
http://blogs.edweek.org/edweek/high_school_and_beyond/2017/08/career_and_technical_education_faces_challenges_in_rural_america.html


  10

 
 

Below is a list of Advance CTE’s staff most impactful or otherwise notable engagement activities 
from last month 

PRESENTATIONS  Led a mini-communications workshop for the South Dakota of 
Education's Division of Career and Technical Education (Gary, SD) 

 Keynote to New York State CTE Technical Assistance Conference (Albany, 
NY) 

 Presented on Education Week's webinar on CTE at the Crossroads 
EVENTS 

ATTENDED 
  

 Career Clusters Task Force Meeting (Baltimore, MD) 
 Career Readiness Expert Workgroup Credentials of Value e-meeting 
 Women in Government Relations’ Education Task Force Call 
 PostSec Data Collaborative Monthly Meeting   
 Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Briefing on Implications of Tax 

Reform on Education 
 Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Briefing on Budget Resolutions 

and Reconciliation 
 Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Briefing on Equity in Education 
 Two Committee for Education Funding (CEF) Meetings  
 Three Campaign to Invest in America's Workforce (CIAW) Meetings 
 Participated in the Advancing Equity Technical Assistance Working group  

OTHER 
PARTNERS 
ENGAGED 

 

 ACTE 
 Afterschool Alliance 
 AIR Center on Great Teachers and Leaders - partnered to plan workshops 

and working groups related to our December 2016 State of CTE report on 
industry experts 

 American School Counselors Association, focused on career 
development and advisement 

 Asia Society 
 Associated Equipment Distributors   
 Education Development Center 
 Leadership Conference on Human and Civil Rights  
 Linked Learning Alliance 
 National Science Foundation 
 RTI International  
 The School Superintendents Association  
 U.S. News World & Report  
 Workforce Data Quality Campaign - coordinated on the upcoming LMI 

Guide 

Strategic Priority: Expand awareness of, support for, and access to high-quality CTE by leading, 
building and maintaining strategic partnerships. 

67



Strategic 
Priority

Strategy Document Activities
Status 

(04/17)
Status 

(09/17)
GREEN On track

Ensuring the adoption and implementation of high-quality state and federal CTE POLICY
YELLOW

Almost on track and/or significant 
work still needed

Member 
Engagement See strategies for Professional Learning n/a n/a

ORANGE
At risk of going off track and/or in 
earliest stages

RED Off track and/or not yet started
Federal Policy & 
Advocacy

Implement an advocacy plan to ensure Advance CTE’s federal policy priorities are 
reflected in federal legislation, regulation, and related policies.

Support the adoption and implementation of high-quality CTE policies at the federal 
and state levels in coordination with Advance CTE's state policy strategy.

State Policy

Plan and execute a research agenda and create high-quality publications, frameworks 
and tools that promote adoption and implementation of high-quality CTE (in alignment 
with member needs and using Putting Learner Success First   as a foundation).

Coordinate with federal policy staff to ensure that both federal and state policy 
research agendas, publications and tools are aligned with each other.

Communications

Position Advance CTE as the national voice on federal and state policy including telling 
the story of how Advance CTE supports and advocates for this work (promote/share 
best practices, disseminate relevant information to members and partners.)

Shared Vision
Align organizational resources calendar with Putting Learner Success First  and its 

principles.

Align federal policy priorities and related documents with Putting Learner Success 
First  and its principles.

Empowering members through PROFESSIONAL LEARNING

Member 
Engagement

Create a personalized, year-round New State Director Program to ease the transition of 
new directors to augment their policy, content and leadership development knowledge 
and skills. changed
Offer high-quality in-person and virtual professional development offerings, including 
Fall and Spring meetings and webinars.
Maintain an informative, useful web-based spaces for members (Members-Only portal 
and Members-Only Clearinghouse).
Clearly define what member benefits and resources are, and embed an explicit prompt 
in each planning and strategy document to articulate and differentiate the benefit to 
members, where appropriate.

Create a strategy to bolster resources available or developed for members only.

Federal Policy & 
Advocacy

Advance CTE's membership has timely and accurate access to information, resources 
and tools to help ensure our members can be effective and informed advocates, 
leaders and implementers of federal CTE policy.

State Policy
Provide members with targeted support related to adopting and implementing state 
policies that promote high-quality CTE. (Perkins, ESSA). 68



Strategic 
Priority

Strategy Document Activities
Status 

(04/17)
Status 

(09/17)
GREEN On track

Leverage the New Skills for Youth work to create benefits for all members.

Communications

Maintain strong and effective two-way communications channels with members to 
ensure they are aware of Advance CTE’s activities, resources and events and that 
Advance CTE is developing the research, tools and resources most needed by our 
members.

Lead and leverage a members' Communications Committee to ensure member 
engagement, support and utilization of Advance CTE communications resources.

Develop materials Advance CTE members can use in their work for case making, 
advocacy, as well as to build knowledge about CTE and career-readiness issues.

Support the utilization of the CTE: Learning that works for America campaign in all 
states through regular revisions of resources and direct technical assistance.
Develop communications materials on major Advance CTE deliverables to assist staff, 
members and public in communicating about Advance CTE and Advance CTE materials 
effectively.

Shared Vision
Launch vision committee to engage members around Putting Learner Success First , 

identify promising practices and identify high-need resources.

Completed in 
Spring

Embed Putting Learner Success First at Fall and Spring meetings.

Build member-focused tools, resources and (potentially) technical assistance to support 
implementation.

Member 
Engagement

Publish an annual report to highlight the accomplishments of Advance CTE and the 
Center to Advance CTE.
Recognize individual members through an annual awards program, including the 
existing Rising Star and Emeritus awards.

Federal Policy & 
Advocacy

Provide federal policy updates to key audiences (e.g., membership, Hill staff, etc.) 
through appropriate communication channels in coordination with Communications.
External-facing federal policy communications resources (e.g., fact sheets, Hill packets, 
etc.) reflect staff input, make relevant connections to state policy and major 
organizational initiatives, and leverage the knowledge/input of Advance CTE's 
membership.
Position Advance CTE as the "go-to" organization for stakeholders (advocacy, policy, 
etc.)  accurate information and timely resources related to CTE.

State Policy

Monitor, synthesize and raise up content from the field, including state policies and 
partner research that promote the principles of Putting Learner Success First (e.g., 

Learning that Works Resource Center, state-specific materials, etc.).

Use organizational expertise and resources to target audiences new to CTE, in order to 
promote our vision of high-quality CTE for all learners. (Virtual Institute)

Raising the visibility and PROMOTION of high-quality CTE

69



Strategic 
Priority

Strategy Document Activities
Status 

(04/17)
Status 

(09/17)
GREEN On track

Work with communications staff to strategically disseminate relevant information and 
resources.

Communications

Leverage the website, blog, social media tools and e-blasts to maximize the reach of 
informational and persuasive messaging tools to engage potential partners and key 
stakeholders.

Utilize CTE Month to lift up the CTE: Learning that Works for America campaign and 
campaign resources.

CTE Month in 
previous quarter

Conduct awards programs that raise up best practices and the visibility of high-quality 
CTE and CTE partners.
Build and maintain strong relationships with key members of the media.

Shared Vision
Develop a suite of materials for members and other interested leaders to use to 
communicate about and advocate for Putting Learner Success First.
Raise awareness about Putting Learner Success First  through blogs, media 

engagement, presentations, annual report, webinars.

Recognize and lift up state and local implementation and support for Putting Learner 
Success First.
Support a sign on campaign, where leaders and supporters at all levels can show their 
support for Putting Learner Success First.

Member 
Engagement

Create meaningful engagement opportunities for all members through focused member 
committees to gather input and feedback.
Encourage and support collaboration between K-12 and postsecondary leaders within 
and beyond our membership.

Federal Policy & 
Advocacy

Develop and leverage strategic alliances with stakeholders within and outside the CTE 
community to advance and amplify Advance CTE's federal policy recommendations and 
successfully further its policy objectives.

State Policy
Actively cultivate and sustain expanded partnerships with other state-facing 
organizations to foster awareness of and support for high-quality CTE.

Communications

Amplify our state and federal policy agenda and state policy work by leveraging 
partnerships, including advocacy groups, to promote and share the best practices and 
our policy positions.

Shared Vision
Deepen partnerships with Putting Learner Success First  supporters and identify new 

ways to collaborate in support of key principles and actions.

Develop joint resources to support state/local implementation of Putting Learner 
Success First  by various stakeholders.

Member 
Engagement

Update organizational SOP to articulate policies, processes and practices regarding 
membership, including professional learning activities such as the Fall and Spring 
meetings.
Implement a back-end database to manage all membership information.

Building and maintaining strong and effective PARTNERSHIPS that advance our vision and mission

Developing internal PROCESSES and PROTOCOLS to ensure a strong and sustainable organization

70



Strategic 
Priority

Strategy Document Activities
Status 

(04/17)
Status 

(09/17)
GREEN On track

Create and implement a consistent process to ensure new Associate and Organizational 
members are integrated into the membership data and gain access to member benefits. 
Collect and analyze data on member engagement to create a baseline and inform 
program improvement.
Systematize the collection and maintenance of member information.

Federal Policy & 
Advocacy

Comply with federal lobbying rules and regulations.

Develop and actively maintain a content management system for tracking federal policy 
and related information (e.g. research, legislation, policies, data, etc.)
Develop and consistently apply clear decision rules to determine when 
legislation/policies align to Advance CTE's federal policy priorities.
Advance CTE staff are aware of federal policy updates and know the key messages 
associated with them.

State Policy Create internal processes for sharing information, resources and data.

Communications
Develop internal processes for tracking and maintaining communication materials and 
activities.

Develop processes for reinvigorating the CTE: Learning that works for America 
campaign and maintaining up-to-date lists of current campaign users and approvers.

Shared Vision
Document and disseminate progress of the states, partnering organizations and 
Advance CTE in the accomplishment of Putting Learner Success First.

Embed activities in support of Putting Learner Success First in our communications, 

member engagement, state policy and federal advocacy strategies.

Create a fundraising strategy and “wish list” with Putting Learner Success First  as the 

anchor document.

Review and revise our organizational mission and vision to better align with Putting 
Learner Success First.

Delayed until 
strategic 
planning

Fulfill state requests for hard copies of Putting Learner Success First.

71



Proposed Revisions to Advance CTE/The Center to Advance CTE Responsibilities 
Submitted by Kate Kreamer, Deputy Executive Director 

In January 2017, the Advance CTE Board of Directors approved a new policy regarding liaisons 
for Career Technical Student Organizations (CTSOs). In August 2017, the Board approved an 
updated Board policy regarding the Nominations Committee and election process.  

Both of these policies have implications for the Commitments and Responsibilities of Advance 
CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Executive Committee form, which is signed by officers of 
the organization, requiring a revision of that document.  

Specifically, the proposed revisions are as follows: 
• Update the description of the scope of the Nominations Committee to include the Board

regional representatives and at-large State Director representatives (under the roles of the 
Past President); 

• Update the roles of the Vice President to include serving on the Nominations Committee and
to remove the requirement of serving as the liaison for SkillsUSA, which can now be filled
by any Board member;

• Reassigned the ACTE liaison role for the Vice President.

Board action: Approve the revised Commitments and Responsibilities of 
Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Executive 
Committee 

72



Commitments and Responsibilities of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE 
Executive Committee 

Approved on November 4, 2014 
The Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE elected officers – President, Vice President, 
Past President, and Secretary/Treasurer – serve as the volunteer management team or Executive 
Committee of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE.  It is to these positions that the 
utmost trust is given and to whom the Board, committees and staff look to for leadership and 
vision.  Being an officer of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE is a four-year 
responsibility beginning as Secretary/Treasurer, moving on to Vice President, President and 
finally Past President.  

As individuals move through the four officer positions, the roles and duties change.  What is 
consistent is that all officers are charged with being a leader and a visionary. Officers must look 
beyond the opportunities and challenges of today and instead guide and position these 
organizations to shape the future of Career Technical Education.  

In addition to fulfilling all the responsibilities and expectations of Advance CTE and The Center 
to Advance CTE Board members, members of the Executive Committee are also expected to: 

• Gain working knowledge of the organization’s programs, services and delivery models.
• Guide the Board of Directors in setting and approving Advance CTE and The Center to

Advance CTE bi-annual strategic plan.
• Serve as a working member of at least one Board committee, taskforce, work group or

project annually, as needed.
• Advocate for the organization, including serving as a spokesperson at federal, national and/or

state conferences and meetings, as needed.
• Help address or mediate internal conflicts, including conflicts of interest.
• Actively participate in Executive Committee meetings, as well as Board meetings, Board

planning retreat and annual meetings.
• Approve Executive Director’s expense reports quarterly.
• Conduct the Executive Director’s annual performance evaluation.
• Be a trusted partner and leader to the Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE staff,

providing guidance when needed.
• Officers will be authorized signers to the investment and bank accounts.

President:  According to the organizational bylaws, “The President shall be the chief executive 
officer of the Corporation and subject to the overall guidance and supervision of the Board of 
Directors, give active direction and control of the business and affairs of the Corporation.” 

The President has four primary roles: 
1. Serve as an officer of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE.
2. Provide vision and guidance to the Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Board

of Directors and membership.
3. Serve as a partner and sounding board and provide guidance to the Advance CTE and The

Center to Advance CTE staff.
4. Be a visible and official spokesperson for Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE.

73



Specific responsibilities include: 
• Assure the status Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE’s capacity is equal to the 

requirements of the strategic plan and goals. 
• Advise on the agenda and topics of and actively participate in the Board and annual meeting 

agendas. 
• Lead and facilitate Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Board meetings to help 

ensure consensus is reached and staff have a clear direction forward for executing work. 
• With the Executive Director, act as a spokesperson for Advance CTE and The Center to 

Advance CTE to the press, public, legislative bodies and related organizations. 
• With the Executive Director, see that the Board of Directors is kept fully informed on the 

conditions and operations of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE.   
• Elect, monitor, appraise, advise, stimulate, support, reward and, if deemed necessary or 

desirable, change top management.  Regularly discuss with the Executive Director matters 
that are of concern to the President or the Board. 

• Manage and present Executive Director’s employment contract to full Board of Directors 
for approval. 

 
Immediate Past President: According to the organizational bylaws, “The Immediate Past 
President shall advise and consult with the President.  The Immediate Past President shall 
perform such other duties as from time to time may be assigned by the President or the Board of 
Directors.” 
 
The Past President has four primary roles: 

1. Serve as an officer of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE. 
2. Provide institutional knowledge to the officers and the Board and serve as a mentor to new 

Board members.  
3. Cultivate leadership from within the Advance CTE membership. 
4. Guide the Executive Committee in negotiations of salary and conduct the Executive 

Director’s performance evaluation annually. 
 
Specific responsibilities include: 
• Chair the Nominations Committee to identify and approve the slate of candidates for 

vacant officer positions, regional representative and at-large State Director representatives. 
• Mentor new Board members as needed. 
• Provide guidance and advice to President. 
• Assist staff with the development and implementation of a fundraising strategy for The 

Center to Advance CTE.  
  
Vice President:  According to the organizational bylaws, “In the absence of the President or in 
the event of his or her inability or refusal to act, the Vice President shall perform the duties of the 
President, and when so acting, shall have all the powers of and be subject to all the restrictions 
upon the President.  The Vice President shall perform such other duties as from time to time may 
be assigned by the President or Board of Directors.” 
 
The Vice President has two primary roles: 
 1.  Serve as an officer of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE. 

74



 2.  Learn and understand the intangible aspects of the position of President. 
 
Specific Responsibilities include: 
• Serve as a liaison to the ACTE Board of Directors. 
• Serve on the Nominations Committee. 
• Assist staff with the development and implementation of a fundraising strategy for The 

Center to Advance CTE.  
 

Secretary/Treasurer:  According to the organizational bylaws, “ In his or her capacity as 
Treasurer, the Secretary/Treasurer shall present reports on the finances of the Corporation at 
Board of Directors meetings; present the annual budget for approval by the Board of Directors; 
serve as Chair of the Finance Committee; ensure that the minutes of the meetings of the members 
and the Board of Directors in one or more books provided for that purpose; see that all notices 
are duly given in accordance with the provisions of these Bylaws or as required by law;  and in 
general perform all the duties incident to the office of Secretary/Treasurer and such other duties 
as from time to time may be assigned to him or her by the President or by the Board of 
Directors.” 
 
The Secretary/Treasurer has three primary roles: 

1. Serve as an officer of Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE. 
2. Have charge and custody of and be responsible for all funds and securities of both Advance 

CTE and The Center to Advance CTE. 
3. Provide ongoing oversight of all aspects of the finances of both Advance CTE and The 

Center to Advance CTE. 
 
Specific Responsibilities include: 
• Chair the Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE  Finance/Audit Committee: 

o Review and recommend approval of an annual operating budget. 
o Regularly review financial reports. 
o Ensure the maintenance of an appropriate capital structure. 
o Oversee the management of organization-wide financial assets. 

• Present all financial reports to the Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Boards 
of Directors and membership. 

• Present minutes to the Advance CTE and The Center to Advance CTE Boards of Directors 
and membership. 

• Review and approve and disbursements over $10,000. 
• Review and recommend for approval all changes and updates to the finance policy. 
• Assist staff with the development and implementation of a fundraising strategy for The 

Center to Advance CTE.  
 
I acknowledge and accept the commitments and responsibilities listed above: 
 
_______________________________________________________ 
Signature       Date 

75



Fundraising & Development Update 
Report submitted by Kate Kreamer, Deputy Executive Director &  

Kimberly Green, Executive Director 
 
Over the past two years, Advance CTE/The Center to Advance CTE has successfully raised 
funds to support new and existing project work, staff time and member resources. Looking at the 
projected income for FY18, which only takes into account money already raised or committed, 
funds raised through foundations, contracts and partnerships account for about 42 percent of our 
income, while dues account for 33 percent.  
 
Advance CTE/The Center to Advance CTE has continued to pursue fundraising and 
development opportunities, but is committed to only taking on projects aligned to Putting 
Learner Success First: A Shared Vision for the Future of CTE, our strategic plan, and our 
member priorities, as well as be sure we can manage the continued growth of our organization.  
 
Starting in July, we began tracking our fundraising and development activities to capture within 
the organization’s Shared Impact and Reach Dashboard. In total, Advance CTE staff: 
 

• Maintained four active grants/contracts; 
• Has been actively pursuing or developing four new proposals;  
• Engaged in multiple or ongoing discussions with three funders; and 
• Had initial conversations with five potential funders. 

 
Ongoing Grants/Contracts: 
• New Skills for Youth: Advance CTE’s largest grant, New Skills for Youth is an initiative led 

by Advance CTE, CCSSO and Education Strategy Group with support from JPMorgan 
Chase & Co.  Advance CTE’s role is to serve as the project co-lead with CCSSO, bringing 
critical content knowledge and expertise to the initiative. Specifically, we help shape the 
overall direction of the initiative, provide on-demand technical assistance, and lead the 
development resources such as briefs on key issues, annual snapshots highlighting state 
progress, and implementation tools. Through this grant, Advance CTE has been able to 
develop a number of very high-profile reports, launch the Learning that Works Resource 
Center and grow our internal capacity by two staff members. This grant opportunity has also 
raised Advance CTE’s profile nationally and in states. Over the course of four years, 
Advance CTE will receive approximately $2.3 million.  

• Strategies for Attracting Students to High Quality CTE: With support from Siemens 
Foundation, The Center to Advance CTE (The Center) had the opportunity to conduct focus 
groups and a national survey of parents and students to test effective messages in support of 
CTE/career readiness. We have used this research to help members and the CTE community 
more effectively recruit students into CTE programs and address ongoing perception 
challenges by developing tools and offering multiple in person and virtual sessions and 
trainings since Spring 2017. We are working with four states (Indiana, Maryland, New Jersey 
and Washington), which are receiving technical assistance and small grants to support and 
learn from innovative recruitment strategies.  In the fall of 2017, The Center is updating a 
number of the CTE: Learning that Works for America® campaign resources based on the 

76



new research and share lessons learned from the four grant-supported states. The grant, 
which runs from August 2016–November 2017, is for a total of $305,000.  

• Potential Role of Secondary Career and Technical Education (CTE) Programs in Preparing 
Students for Apprenticeship Programs: Advance CTE, in partnership with RTI International, 
Jobs for the Future, Vivayic and Quality Information Partners, is leading a project under 
contract with the U.S. Department of Education’s Office of Career, Adult, and Technical 
Education through an indefinite delivery/indefinite quantity (ID/IQ). The goal of this project 
is to develop technical assistance tools and resources for state and local leaders to improve 
the alignment between existing CTE and apprenticeships programs and support alignment 
where it does not yet exist. These tools and resources will be grounded in successful practices 
and lessons learned from the field through site visits. The final paper was released in May 
2017, but the last set of deliverables and reosurces are still under review by the U.S. 
Department of Education. In total, Advance CTE will receive approximately $124,000, 
largely for staff time, over October 2015-September 2017. 

 
Ongoing Partnerships 

• STEM Learning and Research (STELAR) Center: In 2015, The Center to Advance CTE was 
approached by Education Development Center, Inc. (EDC) to support an application for an 
NSF grant to create a STEM Learning and Research (STELAR) Center, a proposal that was 
accepted and is now underway. Our role is primarily to support and disseminate the work 
with the field – through activities such as webinars, info briefs, participating in meetings and 
providing opportunities for sessions on STELAR at Advance CTE meetings. To date, we 
have hosted a webinar on CTE and STEM and responded to some follow up questions from 
researchers in the field.  In total, the amount is $75,000 over three years.  

• Global Perspectives in CTE: Professional Development Modules: Advance ACTE, in 
partnership with ACTE and the Asia Society, is part of a small grant that has been funded by 
the Project Management Institute Education Foundation. In fall 2017, Asia Society released 
the final resource – a toolkit for middle grade and early high school teachers to educate them 
on the need for their students to be globally competent and to lift up the global career 
opportunities that exist in CTE pathways. Over the course of two years, Advance CTE will 
receive approximately $13,500 for its role in this project. 

 
Looking Ahead 

• Siemens Foundation: In late July, we submitted a proposal to Siemens for a two-year grant 
proposal, which will continue to focus on providing technical assistance to states but also 
build a set of tools and trainings targeted at activating and recruiting champions within the 
guidance and career development community. We are now in the process of refining the 
proposal. The Siemens Foundation Board will meet in the fall, which is when they approve 
new grants.  In total, the new two-year grant would be for $610,000. 

• Joyce Foundation: We have been engaged in discussions with Joyce since last fall about 
potential partnership opportunities and have officially submitted a formal proposal in 
September 2017. The project would be a two-year initiative to use the Program Approval 
Policy Benchmark Tool with a cohort of three states to advance quality CTE programs at the 

77



postsecondary level. This project would be a strong anchor for our postsecondary strategy, 
help us provide more technical assistance and support the development of postsecondary-
focused research and resources. If approved, the project would begin in January 2018 and 
would be for $250,000 over two years. 

• Bill & Melinda Gates Foundation: We have had a number of discussions with John Fischer, 
laying groundwork for potential opportunities under a reauthorized Perkins. The Gates 
Foundation has been undertaking an extensive strategic planning and re-organization process, 
which we hope provides new opportunities for funding and collaboration. John is also 
serving on the Career Cluster Task Force.    

• National Science Foundation: Over the summer, we considered submitting a proposal to the 
National Science Foundation for a contract to support and engage employers around our 
nationally tested messages and to additional tools to help strengthen their involvement and 
support of CTE and STEM.  However, due to capacity challenges, we did not submit a 
proposal in early September, but were encouraged by NSF to apply for a $300,000 
“conference” grant, which can be submitted at any time.  

• Project Management Institute Education Foundation: In June, we had a very productive call 
with the Project Management Institute Education Foundation (PMIEF) on the new State 
Director Leadership Program. They were interested in providing in-kind resources and 
training around portfolio management for any and all members. We have recently followed 
up to keep the discussion moving, but need to consider if it is the right fit given the direction 
that project has gone.  

 

Completed Grants/Contracts 

• Department of Defense Education Activity (DoDEA) Support for CTE contract: In September 
2017, The Center began an 11-month contract with DoDEA to support their implementation 
of new CTE standards (which are the Common Career Technical Core) and help plan an 
overhaul of their CTE system and pathways. While the initial contract was for 20-in person 
meetings, we have offered a mix of meetings and background research to help craft an 
implementation strategy to support pathway completion across the multiple DoDEA schools. 
The contract was for $133,500 but Advance CTE ended up invoicing for $122,404.03 based 
on the deliverables. 

 
 

Board action: None 
 

78



Advance CTE Shared Impact & Reach Dashboard – Q1 Stocktake 
Submitted by Kate Kreamer, Deputy Executive Director & Austin Estes, Policy Associate 

 
The October joint Board meeting of Advance CTE/The Center to Advance CTE will include the 
first-ever “stocktake,” based on the organization’s new Shared Impact & Reach Dashboard. 
Below is an overview of what this discussion will entail, how we got here as an organization and 
identifies some pre-work for Board members. 
 
Objectives for the Advance CTE Dashboard Discussion (aka “stocktake”) 
• Review Advance CTE’s self-identified ratings for the ten indicators in the Shared Impact & 

Reach Dashboard 
• Examine evidence for each of the ten indicators 
• Identify 2-3 discussion questions and conduct a meaningful, strategic conversation around 

each 
• Determine next steps and identify priorities to improve Advance CTE’s impact and reach 
 
What is a stocktake? 
A stocktake is a reflective experience where staff and Board members examine evidence of the 
organization’s impact and reach to identify opportunities for growth. The conversation is not 
meant to be punitive. Rather, the focus should be on identifying blind spots and strategizing 
opportunities to increase our collective impact. Through this process, we aim to draw on the 
Board’s collective expertise and seek help strategizing the organization’s priorities.   
 
It is also important to note that the dashboard, as well as the stocktake discussion, should be 
approached through the lens of collective impact. The indicators are meant to be shared and 
cross-organizational. We want to avoid having discussions about a specific strategy or a single 
staff member’s work.  
 
How did we get here?  
Advance CTE presented a dashboard template to the Board in May to gather input into which 
indicators should be included. Board members examined the ten proposed indicators and 
provided suggestions as to how the indicators should be measured and evaluated. After that 
meeting, the dashboard was revised and Advance CTE held its first internal stocktake in July. 
The aim of that conversation was to both reflect on our collective impact for the quarter and 
determine if the process and evidence made sense. A number of improvements were made 
following that internal meeting, primarily around the data definitions and collection processes. 
 
In September, Advance CTE held its second internal stocktake, this time examining evidence for 
only the months of July and August (in order to send to the Board before the October meeting). 
During this meeting, staff created a PowerPoint to share with the Board that includes ratings and 
evidence for our ratings.  
 
How to interpret the dashboard 
There are ten indicators included in the dashboard, each examining different areas of Advance 
CTE’s work. The ten indicators are aligned with Advance CTE’s five strategic priorities: Policy, 

79



Professional Learning, Promotion, Partnerships, and Processes and Protocols. Each indicator is 
scored based on a reflection of evidence, which is described in the table below.  
 
What the scores mean:  
Color scores are inherently subjective and are designed to reflect our best judgment of where we 
are on track and where we need to focus our attention. They are determined collectively through 
the internal stocktake process. We welcome input from the Board on whether or not these are the 
right color scores for each of the indicators.  

• Green: On track 
• Yellow: Almost on track, some concerns 
• Orange: At risk of going off track, some course corrections needed 
• Red: Off track, attention needed 

  
Board pre-work for the organizational stocktake discussion 
By Monday, October 9, please review the attached dashboard ratings and evidence and send 
Advance CTE any questions or items you would like to discuss during the stocktake.  
 
Questions should be cross-organizational in scope and, if possible, touch different indicators in 
the dashboard. For example, “Updating Advance CTE’s Perkins recommendations” would be too 
narrow, but having a conversation around “How does Advance CTE define program quality?” is 
appropriately broad. We will not be able to lead a discussion around every submitted question.  
 
Board members will have an opportunity to prioritize discussion questions during the October 
Board meeting.  
 
 
Board action: None 

80



 
Indicator Description 

Ensuring the adoption and implementation of high-quality state and federal CTE POLICY 

Advance CTE's Influence 
and Impact on Federal 
Policy 

To influence the quality of federal CTE policy and ensure that new laws and regulations are aligned with board-
approved recommendations and Putting Learner Success First, Advance CTE must maintain relationships with key 
influencers and ensure the organization is seen as the go-to expert for quality resources and information. This indicator 
measures the degree to which Advance CTE has impacted federal policy, determined by degree of alignment between 
federal policies and Advance CTE policy recommendations, member satisfaction with federal policy coverage and 
member engagement. 

Advance CTE's Influence 
and Impact on the adoption 
and implementation of 
State Policy 

Advance CTE aims to support states as they adopt and implement high-quality CTE policy aligned to Putting Learner 
Success First. This indicator uses survey data and our direct interactions with states to indicate the impact that Advance 
CTE has on high-quality policy in the states. 

Empowering members through PROFESSIONAL LEARNING 

Impact and value of 
Advance CTE professional 
learning content 

Advance CTE aims to empower members to advance Putting Learner Success First by developing professional 
learning opportunities that are relevant and actionable. This measure indicates the degree to which meeting and webinar 
participants are learning from and using Advance CTE professional development content, as measured by self-reported 
survey responses. 

Member satisfaction with 
value of Advance CTE 

The Advance CTE membership structure is designed to provide value through professional learning opportunities, 
resources and expertise, and access to a peer network. This indicator assesses the degree to which members are satisfied 
with the value of their Advance CTE membership, drawing on a range of metrics including meeting participation, 
research requests, diversity of state team members and self-reported survey data. 

Raising the visibility and PROMOTION of high-quality CTE 

Advance CTE authority and 
leadership in the field 

If Advance CTE staff are perceived as go-to experts, our sphere of influence is increased, we can attract the eye of 
influencers and funders, and we are better positioned to elevate a vision of high-quality CTE. This indicator is designed 
to reflect the degree to which Advance CTE is perceived as a leader in the field, determined by staff speaking 
engagements, leadership positions on partner Boards of Directors, fundraising success and participation on workgroups. 
It also includes media hits and press interactions. 

Advance CTE's digital 
media reach 

Our organization regularly shares research, resources, policy updates and case studies that reflect a vision of high-
quality CTE. This indicator measures the reach of our brand and message by examining the number of visits to the 
Advance CTE website, the Learning that Works Resource Center and the blog. It also includes social media reach and 
newsletter open rates. 

Visibility of high-quality 
CTE policies and programs 

Advance CTE is dedicated to identifying and elevating examples of high-quality CTE in order to dismantle the stigma 
and influence the national dialogue. This measure indicates the visibility of high-quality CTE as determined by the 
reach of Excellence in Action award winners (measured by hits to EiA fact sheets, EiA blog posts and media hits), the 
number of sign ons to the Putting Learner Success First vision and the elevation of high-quality CTE policy and 
programs through Advance CTE publications, resources, webinars, etc. 

81



Building and maintaining strong and effective PARTNERSHIPS that advance our vision and mission 
Value and strength of 
Advance CTE's 
relationships that advance 
the organization's work and 
vision 

Maintaining strong partnerships expands Advance CTE's capacity to advance high-quality CTE aligned to Putting 
Learner Success First, but partnerships must be strategic and high-value to ensure their impact is maximized. This 
indicator measures the degree to which Advance CTE is strengthening and leveraging partnerships to support the 
adoption of high-quality state and federal CTE policy, empower members through professional learning, raise the 
visibility of high-quality CTE and promote the Putting Learner Success First vision. 

Developing Internal PROCESSES and PROTOCOLS to ensure a strong and sustainable organization 
Alignment of Advance 
CTE's resources and 
priorities 

If Advance CTE staff and resources are aligned with the organization's mission and priorities, we will make the most 
impact. This indicator measures the degree to which Advance CTE resources are used to advance the mission and 
vision, as measured by staff time sheets. 

Financial health of 
Advance CTE 

Diversifying funding and securing financial support through grants, contracts and other means enables Advance CTE to 
make a greater impact and sets the organization up for more sustainable, long-term success. This indicator measures 
Advance CTE's and The Center to Advance CTE's organizational health by examining earned income, earned income 
minus membership dues and the ratio of assets to current liabilities. 

 

82



83



•

•

•

•

84



•

•

•

85



•

•

•

86



•

•

•

87



•

•

•

88



89



90



91



•

•

92



93



•

•

•

•

94



•

•

•

95



•

•

•

•

96



•

•

•

•

•

97



•

•

•

•

•

98



•

•

•

•

•

99



•

•

•

•

100



•

•

•

•

101



•

102



•

•

103


	Joint Advance CTE-The Center to Advance CTE Board Agenda - Fall 2017 - FINAL
	Agenda

	Federal Policy - Strategy Update- October 2017
	Board - Strategy_Member Engagement_v2
	Promotion - Strategy Update- October 2017_Final
	State Policy Strategy Update_Oct 2017
	Vision Strategy Update October2017
	Board Updates_May-August 2017 (1)
	May 2017 Board Update
	June 2017 Board Update
	June2017BoardUpdate 1
	June2017BoardUpdate 2
	June2017BoardUpdate 3
	June2017BoardUpdate 4
	June2017BoardUpdate 5
	June2017BoardUpdate 6
	June2017BoardUpdate 7
	June2017BoardUpdate 8
	June2017BoardUpdate 9
	June2017BoardUpdate 10
	June2017BoardUpdate 11
	June2017BoardUpdate 12.pdf

	July 2017 Board Update
	July2017BoardUpdate 1
	July2017BoardUpdate 2
	July2017BoardUpdate 3
	July2017BoardUpdate 4
	July2017BoardUpdate 5
	July2017BoardUpdate 6
	July2017BoardUpdate 7
	July2017BoardUpdate 8
	July2017BoardUpdate 9
	July2017BoardUpdate 10
	July2017BoardUpdate 11.pdf

	August 2017 Board Update.pdf

	Progress on Advance CTE_2FCenter to Advance Activities (3)
	Sheet1

	Updated Executive Committee Responsibilities October2017 (2)
	Fundraising _ Development Update -Oct017 (1)
	Advance CTE Shared Impact & Reach Dashboard Overview Sept2017
	Advance CTE Shared Impact & Reach Dashboard Stocktake Sept2017



